
___________________________________________ 
City Council Agenda – Monday, July 20, 2015 
Page 1 of 2 

PRELIMINARY AGENDA  
REGULAR SESSION 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
North Plains Senior Center 

31450 NW Commercial Street 
Monday, July 20, 2015 – 7:00 P.M. 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER  
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
3. ROLL CALL 
 
4. CONSENT AGENDA:  (The items on the Consent Agenda are normally 

considered in a single motion. Any item may be removed for separate 
consideration upon request by any member of the Council.) 
A. Approval of regular session agenda 
B. Approval of minutes of 07/06/2015 Council meeting 

 
5.  PUBLIC COMMENT: (Persons wishing to speak on matters not on the agenda 

may be recognized at this time.  Speakers must complete a “Public Comment 
Registration form” on the information table and return it to the City Recorder. You 
are not required to give your address when speaking to the City Council, only 
your name.  Presentations are limited to five minutes.) 

 
6. PRESENTATION 

A. Swearing in Ceremony of North Plains Police Officers Jesse Baker and Eric 
Shafer 

 
7. STAFF REPORTS 
 Staff report will be provided by the Chief of Police. Library Director Brodie presents 

her report at the first Council meeting of the month. 
 
8. PUBLIC HEARING: 

None Scheduled 
 
9. NEW BUSINESS: 

A. Adopt Resolution No.1900 Granting and Authorizing the Mayor to Execute a Non-
Exclusive Cable Franchise to Comcast of Oregon II, Inc. 

B. Adopt Resolution No.1901 Granting and Authorizing the Mayor to Execute a Non-
Exclusive Cable Franchise to Qwest Broadband Services, Inc. D/B/A CenturyLink 

C. Review June 2015 Check Register 
 
10. UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 
 None Scheduled 

___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 1 of 219



___________________________________________ 
City Council Agenda – Monday, July 20, 2015 
Page 2 of 2 

 
11. ORDINANCES: 
 
 INTRODUCTION, FIRST READING AND POSSIBLE ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE 

NUMBER 425   
A. Introduction, first reading and possible adoption of Ordinance No. 425— An 

Ordinance of the City Council of the City of North Plains, Oregon, Amending 
Municipal Code Section 15.02.190 (Comprehensive Plan Land Use Map) And 
16.10.006 (Zoning Districts-Boundaries)--Eggiman Property 

 
SECOND READING: 
A. August 3, 2015 (if necessary) Second reading and adoption of Ordinance No. 

425— An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of North Plains, Oregon, 
Amending Municipal Code Section 15.02.190 (Comprehensive Plan Land Use 
Map) And 16.10.006 (Zoning Districts-Boundaries)--Eggiman Property 

 
12. CITY MANAGER REPORT 
 
13. COUNCIL REPORTS 

A. Council reports will be provided by the Mayor and City Councilors on meetings 
attended and other items. 

B. August 2015 Council Calendar 
  

14. ADVICE/INFORMATION ITEMS: 
 Thursday Marketplace-every Thursday this summer on Commercial Street from 

5:00-8:00 p.m. 
 An Evening with an Author: Molly Gloss, Saturday, 7:00 p.m. July 25, 2015 at the 

library 
 National Night Out-Tuesday, August 4, 2015 at Jessie Mays Community Park 
 North Plains Elephant Garlic Festival-August 7-8-9 
 Concerts in the Park-Friday nights in August 

  
15. ADJOURNMENT: 

***** 
North Plains City Council meetings are accessible for disabled individuals.  The City will 
also endeavor to provide services for persons with impaired hearing or vision and other 
services, if requested, at least 48 hours prior to the meeting.  To obtain services, please 
call City Hall at (503) 647-5555  

***** 
 

The following City Council Meetings are scheduled to be held at the North Plains 
Senior Center, 31450 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon. 

 
The meetings will be held on the following dates at 7:00 p.m.: 

Monday, August 3, 2015 Monday, August 17, 2015 (Cancelled) Monday, September 8, 2015 

___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 2 of 219



__________________________________________ 
City Council Minutes – Monday, July 6, 2015 
Page 1 of 6 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
MINUTES REGULAR SESSION 

North Plains Senior Center 
31450 NW Commercial Street 

Monday, July 6, 2015 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor Hatcher called the Regular Session of the City Council 
to order at 7:00 p.m.  
 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Hatcher led the Council in the flag salute. 
 
3. ROLL CALL: Mayor David Hatcher; Council President Teri Lenahan; Councilors: 

Robert Kindel, Jr., Sandi King, Charlynn Newton, Sherrie Simmons and Scott 
Whitehead. 

 
Staff present: Police Chief Bill Snyder; Library Director Debra Brodie; Public 
Works Director/Interim City Manager Blake Boyles; City Recorder Margaret Reh 

 
4. CONSENT AGENDA: 

A. Approval of regular session agenda 
B. Approval of minutes of 06/15/2015 Council meeting 

 
Motion by Lenahan. Second by Kindel to approve the Consent Agenda. Motion was 
approved unanimously. 

 
5.  PUBLIC COMMENT: 
  
Elmer Mays addressed the Council stating he has recently become involved with the 
North Plains Historical Society and participated in the centennial celebration of the North 
Plains Elementary School on May 28, 2015. During this time he became aware that many 
people had no idea who Jessie Mays was and why the community park was named after 
her. A short bio of Mrs. Mays was assembled for the 100th birthday of the elementary 
school and displayed during the festivities. Elmer Mays was inquiring of the Council if they 
would be interested in having this bio available for display at the Jessie Mays Community 
Hall. After a resounding “yes” from the Council, Mr. Mays stated he would get it framed 
and bring it into City Hall to be displayed at Jessie Mays Hall. 
 
Mayor Hatcher informed the Council and members of the audience that Elmer Mays is the 
son of Jessie Mays. 
 
6. PRESENTATION 

None Scheduled 
 

7. STAFF REPORTS: 
 
Chief of Police. 
Chief Snyder reported that Jesse Baker has been hired as the full-time officer. 
 

___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 3 of 219



__________________________________________ 
City Council Minutes – Monday, July 6, 2015 
Page 2 of 6 

The police department is preparing for the upcoming Elephant Garlic Festival; the PGA 
tournament; and National Night Out events that are all coming up. Snyder is ensuring the 
department is squared away on all fire arms training. Snyder reported the Fourth of July 
celebration went fine. Attendance was down from last year. He received no complaints 
from anyone. 
 
Library Director. Debbie Brodie reported there are many summer reading activities going 
on. Today was the first day of the longer library hours with the library opening at 10:00 
a.m. Brodie left bookmarks for each Councilor with the new hours listed on it. 
 
Brodie met with the YMCA representative who is helping coordinate the two camps being 
offered between the library and the YMCA this summer. Brodie thanked the Council for 
arranging for flyers to be distributed door to door while she was away on vacation. Brodie 
reported that there are no sign-ups yet for the July camp. They are still hoping to get at 
least 6-8 participants for the August camp. Short discussion ensued regarding methods 
and means of getting the word out. 
 
Brodie reminded all “summer readers” to turn in the number of pages that have been read 
on a weekly basis. There are drawings for prizes each week and all one needs to do to be 
eligible is to call in to the library or e-mail how many pages that have been read for that 
week.  
 
8. PUBLIC HEARING:  

A. Quasi-Judicial Public Hearing for File No. 15-002, an application submitted for 
a Comprehensive Plan Map and Zone map change-Eggiman property 
Eastside of Glencoe Road between NW Kaybern St. and NW Pacific St. (This 
public hearing was continued from the June 15, 2015 North Plains City Council 
meeting) 

 
This quasi-judicial public hearing was opened at the June 15, 2015 City Council meeting. 
The public hearing was continued to this date at the request of the applicant. Hatcher 
asked staff if they had anything to report. Chris Crean, legal representative, Beery Elsner 
and Hammond, clarified that this public hearing is a quasi-judicial public hearing and not a 
legislative public hearing and gave a brief explanation of the two types of hearings. The 
meeting was noticed properly. The City Recorder read the order of business rules of the 
public hearing process. Mayor Hatcher opened the public hearing at 7:20 p.m. 
 
Hatcher asked for any ex parte contact, conflict of interest or personal bias that should be 
declared. None were expressed nor challenged. 
 
The applicant, Mike Eggiman, 22865 NW Yungen Road and Ken Sandblast, Westlake 
Consultants, Inc. 15115 SW Sequoia Parkway, Suite 150, Tigard, Oregon 97224, 
approached the Council. Eggiman stated that the Council has all received the information 
in their packets so he would try to be brief. There are two parts to this request. One is to 
correct inconsistencies between the Comprehensive Plan and the Zoning plan map for 
1.75 acres of his property. The second is to change the remaining 2.92 of this 4.67 parcel 
from Commercial to High Density Residential in the Comprehensive Plan and to change 
the zoning from Highway Commercial (C-2) to R-2.5. 

___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 4 of 219



__________________________________________ 
City Council Minutes – Monday, July 6, 2015 
Page 3 of 6 

Eggiman has been trying to market this property to grocery store chains for the past 
eight years. Eggiman shared statistics regarding population requirements that would 
support the various types and sizes of grocery stores. 
 
Eggiman also emphasized the 15 degree slope that exists on this property and the 
impact this slope would have on a commercial development. He stated the amount of 
work required to level the property to a usable level for a commercial business could 
be close to $1M. There is a 30 foot elevation change from the west side of the 
property to the east side. Discussion ensued regarding the impact that improvements 
made to the slope of this property for a commercial development would have on 
surrounding areas. 
 
Hatcher inquired about previous zoning of this property. Discussion ensued regarding 
the history of the zoning of the area and the Comprehensive Plan designations.  
 
Hatcher asked for rebuttal. Hearing none, Hatcher asked for the staff report. 
 
Heather Austin, Consulting Land Use Planner, 3J Consulting, presented the staff 
report which included the Planning Commission recommendation from the May 13, 
2015 public hearing. The staff report was all included in the Council Agenda Packet. 
 
Hatcher opened the floor to public testimony asking for proponents, opponents and 
neutral parties. 
 
Stewart King approached the Council stating he was neutral. King questioned the 
meeting being heard as a quasi-judicial meeting instead of legislative. He stated the 
Planning Commission conducted their hearing on May 13, 2015 as a legislative 
hearing which resulted in making a recommendation to the Council. Discussion 
ensued regarding legislative vs. quasi-judicial public hearings. It was noted that the 
meetings were properly noticed. 
 
Discussion ensued regarding the process of approving, denying, or approving with 
conditions of approval and the time constraints of land use applications in regards to 
the 120 day rule. Eggiman stated his point of view of the process and the steps he has 
taken over the years to try to get something done with this property. He has worked 
with the City Manager, the Planning Commission and City Council with different ideas 
and plans and has felt restricted and punished at times with some of the decisions. 
Eggiman is willing to work with the City and felt that this application seemed like a very 
reasonable solution. 
 
Hatcher closed public hearing at 8:44. The Council moved into deliberation. 
 
Council continued discussion regarding density, land inventory, and economic 
development—encouraging businesses to locate in North Plains and the job 
opportunities that will provide. Some members of Council felt Eggiman meets two of 
the three criteria that were concerns for the Planning Commission. Lot size of the 
proposed residential area was discussed. If the residential property were built with a 
minimum lot size of 4000-5000 sq. ft., more medium density dwellings could be built.  
The thought was expressed that if we wait for enough houses to accommodate a 

___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 5 of 219



__________________________________________ 
City Council Minutes – Monday, July 6, 2015 
Page 4 of 6 

larger store, it could be 30 years down the road. A large concern is the full parcel of 
land is not developable for commercial because of the 15 degree slope.  This could 
prohibit a commercial developer from purchasing the property due to the initial 
investment of accommodating for the slope. The remaining 5.2 acres of commercial 
property is sufficient to support the needs of the current population and possible 
secure some of the needed services the community needs. 
 
Councilor Kindel made a motion stating while a need has not been demonstrated for 
additional R-2.5 high density zoning, approval of the proposed zone change limit to R-2.5, 
with a 5000 square foot minimum lot size, similar to the R-5 zone, would be acceptable 
based on the need for medium density residential housing. The rezone would not 
increase local job opportunities or encourage diverse businesses, however, the portion of 
the property proposed for map amendment is not well suited for commercial development 
due to steep slopes. Therefore, the zone change is appropriate. 
Second by Whitehead. The motion passed with a split vote of 5-2, with Lenahan and 
Hatcher voting in opposition. 
 
Motion by Kindel. Second by Whitehead to approve the application for the 
Comprehensive Plan map amendment and zoning map amendment, City File No. 15-
002 Eggiman Zone Change, with the findings in the original staff report, the findings 
included with the Planning Commission recommendation along with the revised 
findings that have been approved by the Council tonight. The motion passed with a 
split vote of 5-2, with Hatcher and Lenahan voting against. 
 
Staff will prepare the final findings for signature and the result will be returned to the 
Council in the form of an ordinance and recorded in perpetuity. 
 
9. NEW BUSINESS: 

A. Adopt Resolution No. 1898 re-appointing Heather LaBonte to the North 
Plains Parks Board 

 
Motion by Lenahan. Second by Simmons to adopt Resolution No. 1898 re-
appointing Heather LaBonte to the North Plains Parks Board. Motion was approved 
unanimously. 
 

B. Adopt Resolution No. 1899 regarding additional street closure request of 
314th Avenue for the North Plains Elephant Garlic Festival Car Show. 

 
Motion by Kindel. Second by Newton to adopt Resolution No. 1899 regarding 
additional street closure request of 314th Avenue for the North Plains Elephant 
Garlic Festival Car Show. Motion was approved unanimously. 
 

C. Discussion regarding establishing a design committee for the mural 
project on the Van Dyke buildings. 

 
Boyles presented the staff report. Boyles stated that the mural project was one of 
the topics of the May 18, 2015 council goals discussion. Simmons has found a 
number of artists that have expressed an interest. However, before anyone can 
move forward, a theme needs to be decided on. Boyles suggested a committee be 

___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 6 of 219



__________________________________________ 
City Council Minutes – Monday, July 6, 2015 
Page 5 of 6 

formed to look at the aspects of the project and get community members involved in 
the process. Simmons volunteered to be on the committee. The Council suggested 
including the Chamber of Commerce, Parks Board, City Council, Planning 
Commission, Farmers Market, business owners, and Dan Van Dyke. Discussion 
ensued. Boyles will work on gathering the prospective members of this committee 
and setting a date for the first meeting. 
 

D. Council to proclaim Tuesday, August 4, 2015 as National Night Out 
 
Councilor Lenahan explained that the City has participated in National Night Out for a 
number of years now. She gave some details about activities for the evening. Discussion 
ensued.  
 
Motion by Simmons. Second by Lenahan to proclaim Tuesday, August 4, 2015 as 
National Night Out. Motion was approved unanimously. 
 
10. UNFINISHED BUSINESS: 
 None presented 
 
11. ORDINANCES: 
  

FIRST READING: 
None Scheduled 
 
SECOND READING: 
None Scheduled 

 
12. CITY MANAGER REPORT  
 
Boyles reported having a great time in Panama while on vacation. 
 
Boyles and the Mayor will be hosting a tour of the walking path under the overpass along 
the Vern Galaway trail with ODOT on July 17, 2015. The group will observe the “baby 
bridge” ODOT constructed and get an understanding of what the plans are. Boyles is 
working with the City Engineer to develop the presentation. 
 
Boyles will be meeting with Washington County regarding the replacement of the railroad 
tracks on Glencoe. The construction will begin after the Garlic Festival. It was suggested 
to check with Horning’s Hideout and inform them this is coming up. 
 
13. COUNCIL REPORTS 
 
Hatcher reviewed the July calendar with the Council. 
 
Crean suggested the Council discuss the approval of the land use ordinance that was 
discussed this evening. This land use decision must be memorialized by ordinance and 
will be on the Council agenda on July 20, 2015. Since the 120 day clock is getting close, it 
was suggested that Council approve the ordinance at one meeting. Crean states the 
charter allows this if no Councilors object. If the Council are in agreement and if the 

___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 7 of 219



__________________________________________ 
City Council Minutes – Monday, July 6, 2015 
Page 6 of 6 

ordinance is duly noticed, it can be approved in one session. Austin will have the 
ordinance ready for posting as notice, by Monday, July 13, 2015, and the ordinance will 
be read and adopted at one meeting. 
 
Council normally takes one meeting off in August. Discussion ensued. Council will cancel 
the second meeting in August. Council will meet on August 3, 2015. Council will not meet 
on August 17, 2015. 
 
There will be a URA meeting schedule on Monday, July 20, 2015 and will take place after 
the City Council meeting. 
 
14. ADVICE/INFORMATION ITEMS: 

 Thursday Marketplace-every Thursday this summer on Commercial Street 
from 5:00-8:00 p.m. 

 An Evening with an Author: Molly Gloss 7 p.m. at the library 
 National Night Out-Tuesday, August 4, 2015 at Jessie Mays Community Park 
 North Plains Elephant Garlic Festival-August 7-8-9 
 Concerts in the Park-Friday nights in August 

 
15. ADJOURNMENT: 

Mayor Hatcher adjourned the regular session of the City Council at 9:28 p.m. 
 
 
______________________________ 
David Hatcher, Mayor 
 
 
_______________________________ Date approved ________________ 
Margaret L. Reh, City Recorder 

___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 8 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 9 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 10 of 219



Agenda Item No. 9A 

COMCAST CABLE TV FRANCHISE RECOMMENDATION 

TO THE CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

 
Prepared by the Metropolitan Area Communications Commission 

June 2015 

 

On June 10, 2015, the Board of Commissioners of the Metropolitan Area Communications 

Commission (MACC) recommended, by a unanimous vote, that your City and the other fourteen 

MACC member jurisdictions grant Comcast of Oregon II, Inc. (Comcast) a 10-year renewal of 

the company’s cable television franchise (see Exhibit A, MACC Recommending Resolution).  A 

copy of the recommended franchise agreement and a Comparison of that agreement to the 

current Comcast franchise is enclosed with this report (see Exhibits B and C). 

 

MACC staff and representatives of Comcast will be available at your meeting to answer any 

questions.   

 

By the terms of the MACC Intergovernmental Agreement, to which your jurisdiction is a party, 

every affected MACC jurisdiction must adopt the franchise, as recommended, to renew the 

Comcast franchise – if one jurisdiction votes no, it vetoes the franchise for the others. 

 

The Recommended Agreement – The recommended ten year franchise agreement retains the 

important financial, service and regulatory benefits that the member jurisdictions have relied on 

for the past 17 years of the existing franchise.  It also includes  technology updates for Tualatin 

Valley Community Televisions (TVCTV) programming such as high-definition equipment and 

transmission, as well as lower and guaranteed costs for the our jurisdictions’ use of  broadband 

network services provided by the Public Communication Network (PCN).  The franchise is 

structured to make it comparable to the 2007 Frontier Franchise where applicable to maintain 

level playing field conditions, including updated customer services requirements.     

 

 

BACKGROUND  

The City has been served by Comcast since 2002 under a franchise originally granted to AT&T 

Broadband in 1999.  That franchise expired in 2014, but has been extended by action of MACC 

and the member jurisdictions twice. 

 

Federal law (47 USC  §546) sets out a three-year structure for (1) determining the area’s cable 

related needs and interests (the “Needs Assessment”) and (2) negotiating a renewed cable 

franchise.  In the Spring of 2011, MACC, on behalf of its fifteen member jurisdictions, began a 

process to renew the cable television franchise of Comcast’s local franchise holder, Comcast of 

Tualatin Valley, Inc.  Federal law provides for a cable operator’s continued use of the right of 

way as long as it meets certain requirements.1   

 

Negotiations began in February 2013 and concluded on May 29, 2015.   

                                                 
1 47 USC §546 

___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 11 of 219



Highlights of the Franchise  

 

Term.  The recommended Franchise Agreement will run ten years, from July 1, 2015 through 

June 30, 2025.  The current Comcast franchise will remain in effect as necessary through the 

franchise adoption process. 

   

Gross Revenue Definition.  The Gross Revenue definition is used to determine the basis on 

which a five percent Franchise Fee is paid.  (Five percent is the maximum allowed under federal 

law.)  The franchise definition is substantively unchanged from the current Comcast franchise.   

Comcast will continue to pay on each of the revenue streams the company receives from the use 

of its Cable System – except for the revenue gained from Comcast’s Institutional Network 

(PCN) services (see Institutional Network below).  This revenue will no longer be included as 

part of the company’s “Gross Revenue.”  The result is an approximate 1.5% reduction in revenue, 

based on 2014 revenue.   

 

Competition.   The Comcast franchise was negotiated to maintain a level playing field 

environment for the increasingly competitive cable television market.  The Verizon cable 

franchise (which was purchased by Frontier Communications, provides cable service in eleven 

member jurisdictions) was granted in 2007.  The recommended Comcast franchise includes 

Frontier’s updated customer service standards and other provisions to ensure the companies are 

operating under the same regulatory environment as much as possible. In addition, the franchise 

has a provision that allows for possible amendments should new technology or a new regulatory 

environment present itself.  See the Franchise Comparison for more details. 

 

PEG Access.  All key PEG commitments are continued or improved in the recommended 

Franchise Agreement. MACC will continue to provide Public and Government Access, including 

the city and county meeting coverage provided by TVCTV.  One High Definition (HD) PEG 

channel will be added to the Comcast channel lineup beginning this Fall.  Additional HD PEG 

channels will continue to be added until all channels are in HD (at the time when all Basic 

channels are carried in HD).  Standard Definition (SD) channels will continue to be 

simultaneously carried (until SD is no longer available) to ensure all subscribers have access to 

this programming.   

 

Institutional Network (PCN).  The PCN, MACC and Comcast’s public data network, is the 

largest single change in the new Franchise Agreement.  The Franchise provides Comcast with 

the ability to provide these services through an Affiliate (Metro-E).  This change allows 

Comcast to have more individualized business-based relationships with the 20 jurisdictional and 

special district PCN customers.  In return, PCN customers will have access to significantly 

lower (averaging 25%) and steady (rates will no longer be subject to annual increases) 

costs, as well as more options for levels of service.    

 

PEG/PCN Fund.  MACC currently receives $1.00 per subscriber per month from Comcast (a 

cost the company passes on to its subscribers), adding up to about $1,200,000 per year.  This 

revenue supports PEG Access equipment needs and the operational and equipment expenses of 

PCN users.  The new franchise agreement decreases the fee, and thus subscriber’s cost, from 

$1.00 per month to 80¢ per month.  However, MACC’s net revenue is offset through the addition 

___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 12 of 219



of approximately 25,000 Comcast subscribers in West Linn and portions of unincorporated 

Washington County – a result of uniting three separate Comcast franchises currently 

administered by MACC into this new Comcast franchise.*   

 

MACC staff is comfortable that this Fund will continue to provide for a viable and strong PEG 

program and all of the critical support PCN Users have come to rely on for the last 17 years. 

 

Customer Service.  MACC was successful in establishing standard Customer Service 

requirements for all cable operators in the MACC jurisdictions, including: 

 Telephone Availability requirements; 

 Installation and Service requirements; 

 Billing requirements and outage credits; 

 Customer Complaint procedures; 

 Notices to customers for channel lineup and rate changes; and  

 Dozens of additional reliability, notice and information requirements. 
 

Franchise Violations and Remedies.  The Commission’s ability to levy fines against Comcast is 

capped in this Franchise Agreement, at $75,000 per year, comparable to the level in the Frontier 

franchise.  The Commission has not levied fines against Comcast that exceed this amount for 

more than ten years.    

 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

MACC advertised the Commission meeting and solicited public comments in local area 

newspapers, as well as on the maccor.org website in March and June.   

 

CONCLUSION 

Your MACC representative, along with the other MACC Commissioners, has recommended the 

Comcast Franchise Agreement as an excellent agreement that will serve the interests of cable 

subscribers for the next ten years. This recommended Franchise Agreement retains the basic 

elements and long-term benefits of the cable television franchises on which the Member 

Jurisdictions have come to rely — financial stability, the ability to meaningfully respond to 

customer service deficiencies, superior PEG Access programming and support, and the guarantee 

of an institutional network that meets the current and future needs of the area at a reduced cost 

for users.  

   

A reminder:  All 15 MACC Jurisdictions must approve the Franchise Agreement for it to become 

effective.   

 

Attachment:  Exhibit A – MACC Recommending Resolution 2015-05 

  Exhibit B – Recommended Comcast Franchise Agreement  

Exhibit C – Comparison of the 1999 franchise to the 2015 franchise  

Exhibit D – MACC Questions & Answers about the Recommended Franchise 

 
*  Note that similar PEG/PCN Fund provisions of the West Linn and a second unincorporated Washington County 

franchise expired along with those franchise requirements from 2005 through 2007, and will now be reinstated at 

this lower amount.  MACC will respond to any customer inquiries. 

___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 13 of 219

http://maccor.org/


Resolution No. 1900 
Granting a Cable Services Franchise to Comcast of Oregon II, Inc. 

1 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 1900 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF NORTH PLAINS GRANTING AND  

AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE A NON-EXCLUSIVE CABLE  
FRANCHISE TO COMCAST OF OREGON II, INC. 

 
WHEREAS, in 1980 the Metropolitan Area Communications Commission (hereinafter 
"MACC") was formed by Intergovernmental Cooperation Agreement, amended in 2002 
and now an Intergovernmental Agreement (hereinafter “IGA”) to enable its member 
jurisdictions to work cooperatively and jointly on communications issues, in particular 
the joint franchising of cable services and the common administration and regulation of 
such franchises, and the City of North Plains (hereinafter “City”) is a member of MACC;  
and 
 
WHEREAS, the IGA authorizes MACC and its member jurisdictions to grant one or 
more nonexclusive franchises for the construction, operation and maintenance of a 
cable service system within the combined boundaries of the member jurisdictions; and 
 
WHEREAS, the IGA requires that each member jurisdiction to be served by the 
proposed franchisee must approve any cable service franchise; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has previously granted a cable franchise to TCI Cablevision of 
Tualatin Valley, Inc. and that franchise is now held by Comcast of Tualatin Valley, the 
grantee’s lawful successor in interest; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of MACC, by Resolution 2015-05 adopted on 
the 10th day of June, 2015, recommended that the member jurisdictions grant a 
franchise to Comcast of Oregon II, Inc. in the form attached hereto as Exhibit "A," which 
authorizes the provision of cable services from July 1, 2015 through June 30, 2025; and 
 
WHEREAS, MACC and the City have provided adequate notice and opportunities for 
public comment on the proposed cable services franchise including public hearings on 
March 18, 2015 and June 10, 2015; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Council finds that approval of the recommended franchise is in the best 
interest of the City and its citizens, consistent with applicable federal law. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. The City hereby grants to Comcast of Oregon II, Inc., 
and authorizes and directs the Mayor to execute, the 
cable television franchise substantially in the form 
attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

 

___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 14 of 219



Resolution No. 1900 
Granting a Cable Services Franchise to Comcast of Oregon II, Inc. 

2 

Section 2. The grant of franchise at Section 1 is conditioned 
upon each of the following events: 

 
(a) The affirmative vote of the governing body of 

each MACC member jurisdiction; and 
 
(b) Comcast of Oregon II, Inc.’s fulfillment of the 

franchise acceptance provisions contained in the 
Franchise; and 

 
(c) Formal written determination by the MACC 

Administrator that, in accordance with the 
requirements of the IGA, each of the above two 
events has occurred. 

 
Section 3. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect upon 

its adoption by the City Council, subject to the 
conditions set forth in Section 2. 

 
INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 20th day of July, 2015 
 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON 
 
 
 
BY:  _____________________________________ 

David Hatcher, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
BY:  ______________________________________ 

Margaret L. Reh, City Recorder 

___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 15 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 16 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 17 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 18 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 19 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 20 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 21 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 22 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 23 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 24 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 25 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 26 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 27 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 28 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 29 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 30 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 31 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 32 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 33 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 34 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 35 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 36 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 37 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 38 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 39 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 40 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 41 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 42 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 43 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 44 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 45 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 46 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 47 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 48 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 49 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 50 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 51 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 52 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 53 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 54 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 55 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 56 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 57 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 58 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 59 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 60 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 61 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 62 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 63 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 64 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 65 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 66 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 67 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 68 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 69 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 70 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 71 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 72 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 73 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 74 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 75 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 76 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 77 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 78 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 79 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 80 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 81 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 82 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 83 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 84 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 85 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 86 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 87 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 88 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 89 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 90 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 91 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 92 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 93 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 94 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 95 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 96 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 97 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 98 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 99 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 100 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 101 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 102 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 103 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 104 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 105 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 106 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 107 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 108 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 109 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 110 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 111 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 112 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 113 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 114 of 219



 

{00472083; 1 }  
 

Agenda Item No. 9B 

CENTURYLINK  

CABLE TV FRANCHISE RECOMMENDATION 

TO THE CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

 
Prepared by the Metropolitan Area Communications Commission 

July 2015 

 

On July 8, 2015, the Board of Commissioners of the Metropolitan Area Communications 

Commission (MACC) recommended, by a unanimous vote, that your City and four other 

affected MACC member jurisdictions grant Qwest Broadband Services, Inc. d/b/a CenturyLink 

(CenturyLink) a new, competitive franchise agreement to provide cable television services 

within the City.  (See Exhibit A, MACC Recommending Resolution).  A copy of the 

recommended franchise agreement and a Comparison of that agreement to the recommended and 

current Comcast franchises are enclosed with this report (see Exhibits B and C). 

 

By the terms of the MACC Intergovernmental Agreement, to which your jurisdiction is a party, 

every affected MACC jurisdiction must adopt the franchise, as recommended, to renew the 

Comcast franchise – if one of the five jurisdictions votes no, it vetoes the franchise for the others. 

 

The Recommended Agreement – The recommended franchise agreement differs from the 

recommended Comcast franchise in some areas, but it includes all of the important financial, 

service and regulatory benefits found in the recommended Comcast agreement.   The most 

significant difference is in the way the franchise is structured.  The CenturyLink franchise 

provides incentives to the company to expand its service throughout the City.  The term of the 

franchise is just five years, but can be extended if CenturyLink meets certain benchmarks.  In 

most sections, the franchise matches the new terms of the recommended Comcast franchise 

including financial, Public, Education and Governmental (PEG) channels and support and the 

other important community benefits that the City expects.       

 
BACKGROUND 
 

In February 2015, MACC received a completed application from CenturyLink and began 

negotiations for a cable franchise to serve the MACC member jurisdictions of Lake Oswego, 

North Plains, Tigard, West Linn and unincorporated Washington County (the Affected 

Jurisdictions).  These areas overlay the telecommunications footprint of CenturyLink – those 

areas where the state PUC has granted CenturyLink the ability to provide telephone service.   
 

The MACC Intergovernmental Agreement provides for a franchise for a limited-area cable 

franchise (in this case, five of the fifteen MACC member jurisdictions), and MACC previously 

granted such a cable franchise to Frontier Communications (originally: Verizon), in 2007 for 

eleven member jurisdictions.   
 

Throughout March, April and May, CenturyLink met with MACC staff to negotiate a franchise.  

Those discussions proceeded relatively quickly and negotiations were generally concluded by 

late May.  A proposed franchise agreement was finalized on June 22, 2015.  The proposed 

franchise is based on the Affected Jurisdictions’ needs and interests as well as the similarly-

___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 115 of 219



 

{00472083; 1 }  
 

situated Frontier cable television franchise (serving most of Washington County and 

administered by MACC) as well as a recent CenturyLink franchise granted to the company by 

the City of Portland.  (CenturyLink began providing cable service in portions of Portland in May, 

2015.) 
 

Significant sections of the proposed CenturyLink agreement mirror the obligations in the 

recommended Comcast franchise, including the definition of Gross Revenue, the Customer 

Service Standards, Public, Education and Government (PEG) Access requirements and 

complementary cable services to public buildings.  Other requirements, specifically those tied to 

the technology and design of the system, as well as the regulation of the public Right of Way 

(ROW) are the same as those set out in the Frontier franchise.  While North Plains is not a party 

to the Frontier franchise, nearby Frontier jurisdictions (including the County and Hillsboro) have 

found that franchise to be a benefit to the community and complimentary to their codes and 

ROW regulations.   

 

The proposed CenturyLink franchise is granted to CenturyLink’s corporate relative, Qwest 

Broadband Services, Inc. (QBSI).  Qwest Corporation owns the facilities in the Affected 

Jurisdictions’ ROW, and QBSI d/b/a CenturyLink will provide cable services over those 

facilities.  The enforceability of the franchise is not negatively affected by this corporate 

structure.   
 

If adopted, CenturyLink indicates that it will begin service later this year in some small portions 

of the five franchised jurisdictions, and has plans to initiate service to other granted service areas 

in the near future. 
 

Staff Analysis and Discussion of Key Elements of the CenturyLink Franchise Agreement 
 

Term.  The term of the proposed franchise is similar to the Portland CenturyLink agreement and 

structured to incentivize the company to build out its network as it gains confidence that its 

competitive service is viable.   
 

The franchise will expire in just over five years, on December 31, 2020, if the company cannot 

or will not expand its network beyond that initial service area.  If Century Link does expand its 

network to 20% of the service area by 2018, the franchise provides for an additional three years 

(expiring in 2023).  If CenturyLink can expand to 50% of the service area by 2021, the franchise 

will expire on December 31, 2025 – slightly more than a full ten year franchise.   
   
At the same time, there are significant provisions in the franchise assuring that the company 

cannot discriminate in any way.  The company must offer service to any customer, residential or 

business in the franchise area, where it is technically feasible.   
 

Gross Revenue Definition for purposes of determining Franchise Fee payments.  The Gross 

Revenue definition is identical to the Commission’s recommended Comcast franchise.    

CenturyLink will pay five percent on the same basis as Comcast and Frontier.   
 

Right of Way Regulation.  CenturyLink will use the facilities of its corporate relative, Qwest 

Corporation.  Qwest Corp. owns the telecommunications facilities in the Affected Jurisdictions’ 

Rights of Way (ROW) and has a license or franchise if appropriate with the jurisdictions.  All 

___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 116 of 219



 

{00472083; 1 }  
 

ROW codes and requirements of those jurisdictions will continue to apply to the 

Qwest/QBSI/CenturyLink facilities.  This is the same regulatory structure that Frontier cable 

franchise has with MACC and the member jurisdictions served by Frontier.   
 

PEG Access.  All key Public, Education and Government (PEG) Access commitments in the 

recommended Comcast franchise are contained in the CenturyLink franchise, with some added 

benefits.  There are no HD requirements in the Frontier franchise, and Comcast has a phased-in 

PEG HD programming commitment.  By contrast, CenturyLink will provide all HD-provided 

PEG programming to its customers in HD.  CenturyLink has also agreed to provide its customers 

with PEG Video on Demand programming.  Neither Comcast nor Frontier has that requirement.    
 

PEG/PCN Fund.  CenturyLink will match the recommended Comcast franchise PEG Fund 

commitment of $0.80 per month per subscriber.    

 

Customer Service.  CenturyLink will match Comcast’s (and Frontier’s) Customer Service 

requirements.  All three MACC-franchised cable operators will provide service under this same 

set of standards.    
 

Franchise Violations and Remedies.  The Commission’s ability to levy fines against CenturyLink 

is capped in this Franchise Agreement at $25,000 per year, commensurate with the level in the 

Comcast and Frontier franchises.    
 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

MACC solicited public comments in local area newspapers, as well as on the maccor.org 

website.   

 

CONCLUSION 

Your MACC representative, Councilor Whitehead, along with the other MACC Commissioners, 

has recommended granting the CenturyLink Franchise Agreement.  If granted, area residences 

and businesses will be able to choose from an additional cable television service provider.  Like 

the recommended Comcast franchise, the CenturyLink Franchise Agreement retains the basic 

elements and long-term benefits of the cable television franchises on which the Member 

Jurisdictions have come to rely — financial stability, the ability to meaningfully respond to 

customer service deficiencies, and superior PEG Access programming and support. MACC and 

CenturyLink staff will be available at your meeting for any questions. 

   

A reminder:  All 5 Affected MACC Jurisdictions must approve the Franchise Agreement for it to 

become effective.   

 

Attachment:  Exhibit A – MACC Recommending Resolution 2015-07 

  Exhibit B – Recommended CenturyLink Franchise Agreement  

Exhibit C – Comparison of the recommended franchises  

Exhibit D – MACC Questions & Answers about the Recommended Franchises 

 

   

___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 117 of 219

http://maccor.org/


Resolution No. 1901 
Granting a Cable Services Franchise to CenturyLink 

1 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 1901 

 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF NORTH PLAINS GRANTING AND  
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE A NON-EXCLUSIVE CABLE  

FRANCHISE TO QWEST BROADBAND SERVICES, INC. D/B/A  
CENTURYLINK 

 
WHEREAS, in 1980 the Metropolitan Area Communications Commission (hereinafter 
"MACC") was formed by Intergovernmental Cooperation Agreement, amended in 2002 
and now an Intergovernmental Agreement (hereinafter “IGA”) to enable its member 
jurisdictions to work cooperatively and jointly on communications issues, in particular 
the joint franchising of cable services and the common administration and regulation of 
such franchises, and the City of North Plains (hereinafter “City”) is a member of MACC; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, the IGA authorizes MACC and its member jurisdictions to grant one or 
more nonexclusive franchises for the construction, operation and maintenance of a 
cable service system within the combined boundaries of the member jurisdictions; and 
 
WHEREAS, the IGA requires that each member jurisdiction to be served by the 
proposed franchisee must approve any cable service franchise; and 
 
WHEREAS, Qwest Broadband Services, Inc. d/b/a CenturyLink (“CenturyLink”) has 
formally requested a franchise with MACC and five of its member jurisdictions, including 
the City, and MACC has reviewed the franchisee’s qualifications in accordance with 
federal law; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners of MACC, by Resolution 2015-07 adopted on 
the 8th day of July, 2015, recommended that the five member jurisdictions grant a 
franchise to CenturyLink in the form attached hereto as Exhibit "A"; and 
 
WHEREAS, MACC and the City have provided adequate notice and opportunities for 
public comment on the proposed cable services franchise including public hearings on 
July 8, 2015; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Council finds that approval of the recommended franchise is in the best 
interest of the City and its citizens, consistent with applicable federal law. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. The City hereby grants to Qwest Broadband Services, 
Inc. d/b/a CenturyLink a non-exclusive cable services 
franchise on the terms and conditions contained in 
Exhibit “A”. 

___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 118 of 219



Resolution No. 1901 
Granting a Cable Services Franchise to CenturyLink 

2 

 
Section 2. The grant of franchise at Section 1 is conditioned 

upon each of the following events: 
 

(a) The affirmative vote of the governing body of 
each of the five affected MACC member 
jurisdictions; the Cities of Lake Oswego, North 
Plains, Tigard and West Linn and Washington 
County; and 

 
(b) Qwest Broadband Service, Inc.’s fulfillment of 

the franchise acceptance provisions contained in 
the Franchise; and 

 
(c) Formal written determination by the MACC 

Administrator that, in accordance with the 
requirements of the IGA, each of the above two 
events has occurred. 

 
Section 3. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect upon 

its adoption by the City Council, subject to the 
conditions set forth in Section 2. 

 
INTRODUCED AND ADOPTED this 20th day of July, 2015 

 
CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON 
 
 
 
BY:  _____________________________________ 

David Hatcher, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
BY:  ______________________________________ 

Margaret L. Reh, City Recorder 
 

___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 119 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 120 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 121 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 122 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 123 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 124 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 125 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 126 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 127 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 128 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 129 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 130 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 131 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 132 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 133 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 134 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 135 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 136 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 137 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 138 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 139 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 140 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 141 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 142 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 143 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 144 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 145 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 146 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 147 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 148 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 149 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 150 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 151 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 152 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 153 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 154 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 155 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 156 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 157 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 158 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 159 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 160 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 161 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 162 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 163 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 164 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 165 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 166 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 167 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 168 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 169 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 170 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 171 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 172 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 173 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 174 of 219



                      
 

  

North Plains COMCAST and CENTURYLINK FRANCHISE COMPARISON 
Metropolitan Area Communications Commission 

July 20, 2015 
 
 

 
FRANCHISE  
PROVISION 

 
Today’s 

COMCAST 

 
July 2015  

COMCAST 
 

 
2015 

CenturyLink 

 
Term 

 

 
Originally 15 years, extended 

through July 2015 

 
10 years 

 
5 years (through mid 2020).   
 
May be extended through 2023 -- if 
CenturyLink builds to twenty percent of 
the area by 2018, and  
 
Another extension through 2025 (total 
of 10 years) if fifty percent of the area is 
offered service by 2021. 
 
Incentives are built into the franchise to 
encourage service to more areas. 
 

 
Franchise fees 

 

 
5% of gross revenues 
 

 
No Change 

 
5% of gross revenues 

 
Insurance Limits 

 

 
General Liability:    $1 million 
  
Auto BI/PD:            $2 million 
Employers Liab:     $1 million 

 
General Liability:    $3 million 
Broadcaster Liab:   $1 million 
Auto BI/PD:            $2 million 
Employers Liab:     $2 million 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Same as 2015 Comcast franchise 

___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 175 of 219



 

 

2 
 

 
FRANCHISE  
PROVISION 

 
Today’s 

COMCAST 

 
July 2015  

COMCAST 
 

 
2015 

CenturyLink 

 
Gross Revenue 
Definition 

 
 

 
Among the most aggressive Gross 
Revenue definitions in the country. 
 
 
 
 
 
MACC collected approximately 
$6.6M in CY 2014  
 

 
MACC retained its broad definition of 
Gross Revenue – the application of a 
5% fee on all revenue attributable to 
Cable Services.  Still better standard 
than most franchises and all area 
franchises. 
 
If the revenue base is the same, 
MACC collections in CY2015 would 
be: $6.5M, a 1.5% drop.  (No longer 
includes PCN revenue due to 
changes in PCN management.)  
 

 
Identical to 2015 Comcast franchise 
definition 

 
Audit Authority/ 
Reports 

 
If franchise fees are underpaid by 
3% or more, Comcast pays the 
total cost of the audit.  

 
Improved all data retrieval 
requirements (time limits, types of 
records, and now subject to fines). 
 
Authority to audit once every 24 
months (current practice); 
 
Increased to 4% or less, the amount 
at which Comcast must pay for the 
audit.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Same as, or commensurate with, 2015 
Comcast franchise provisions 
 

___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 176 of 219



 

 

3 
 

 
FRANCHISE  
PROVISION 

 
Today’s 

COMCAST 

 
July 2015  

COMCAST 
 

 
2015 

CenturyLink 

 
CUSTOMER 

SERVICE 
 

 
1999 standard Customer Service 
Requirements. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Comcast will abide by the more 
detailed MACC customer service 
model, unifying (and marginally 
improving) the standards that apply 
to all cable operators in the area. 
 
 

 
Same as 2015 Comcast franchise 
 
 
 

 
Telephone 
Answering 

 
90% of the calls answered within 
30 seconds. 

 
Specific reports required to 
document compliance. 
 

 
Same as 2015 Comcast franchise 

 
Local Office 
 
 

 
One customer service center 
located in the metropolitan area.   
 

 
No local office requirement. 
Matches Frontier requirement to pick 
up or drop off equipment free of 
charge (using representative visit, 
prepaid mailer, or establishing a local 
business office). 
 

 
Same as 2015 Comcast franchise 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Fines 

 
No cap. 
 
 

 
Fines capped at $75,000/year.   
 
 

 
Fines capped at $25,000/year 

(commensurate based on subscriber 
base)  

 
 

___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 177 of 219



 

 

4 
 

 
FRANCHISE  
PROVISION 

 
Today’s 

COMCAST 

 
July 2015  

COMCAST 
 

 
2015 

CenturyLink 

 
Police Powers 

 

 
Comcast must abide by all 
generally applicable codes in each 
member jurisdiction. 

 
North Plains maintains its full 
authority over its ROW. 
 
 

 
ROW use is independently regulated by 
City code. 
 
 

 
 

Competition 

 
City must ensure that any new 
competitor receives a franchise 
with comparable terms.   
 
Comcast may sue for relief. 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 
If competitor’s franchise has terms 
that are perceived to be less 
demanding on these points:  
 

 5% franchise fee 
 PEG funding 
 PEG channels 
 Customer Service standards 
 Complimentary services 

 
Then, this process could be initiated 
by Comcast:  (1) discussion with 
MACC to mitigate the Comcast 
franchise, and then, if not resolved, 
(2) court review, or (3) a reduction in 
the franchise term to not more than 
30 months.   
 
Step 3 would result in a new 
negotiated franchise through the 
renewal procedures of the Cable Act.   
 
Only applies to the specific 
jurisdiction(s) where a competitor’s 
franchise is granted and challenged 
by Comcast. 
 

 
Competitive franchise: no specific 
provisions.  

___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 178 of 219



 

 

5 
 

 
FRANCHISE  
PROVISION 

 
Today’s 

COMCAST 

 
July 2015  

COMCAST 
 

 
2015 

CenturyLink 

 
PEG Channels 
 

 
6 channels required in 
MACC/Washington County 
franchises; 5 channels in West 
Linn franchise.  There is potential 
for additional channels.  MACC 
programs 4 Public & Government 
Channels. 
 

 
5 channels  
 
Side agreement – CAN (Ch 11) and 
PCC (Ch 27) may be discontinued if 
Comcast can get all other metro area 
systems to agree to eliminate it 
(considered unlikely, but possible as 
other P channel options grow). 
 
 
 
 
 

 
6 channels 

 
PEG/PCN Fee  

 
 $1.00 per subscriber /month 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Requires a Competitive Grant  
Process. 
 
   

 
Although the per subscriber fee falls 
to $0.80 per month, there is no 
reduction on the PEG/PCN Fund: 
Combining the three franchises 
requires Comcast to provide funding 
based on an additional 25,000 
subscribers.  
 
Commission will allocate funding 
following a review of current 
PEG/PCN Fund Policy early next 
Fiscal Year.      
 

 
 Same as 2015 Comcast franchise 

 
HD Channels 

 
No HD Channels 

 
3 new HD channels implemented 
over 4 years.  Additional provisions 
for additional channels. 
 

 
All PEG channels to be cablecast in 
HD, downconverted for customers with 
SD televisions. 

___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 179 of 219



 

 

6 
 

 
FRANCHISE  
PROVISION 

 
Today’s 

COMCAST 

 
July 2015  

COMCAST 
 

 
2015 

CenturyLink 

 
Institutional 
Network (PCN) 
 

 
No Institutional Network 
 

 
PCN required under the Franchise, 
but provided by Comcast affiliate. 
  
  
  
 

 
No Institutional Network 

 

___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 180 of 219



North Plains 

Cable Franchise Adoption 

Questions and Answers 

Prepared by MACC 

July 2015 

 

Q1: What is MACC? 

 

A: Your jurisdiction is a member of the Metropolitan Area Communications Commission – a fifteen 

member joint powers organization.  MACC was created in 1980 to provide a centralized agency to 

prepare for, negotiate and administer cable television franchises.  On behalf of the member 

jurisdictions, in accordance with its Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA), MACC provides the 

daily management of the area’s cable franchises (Comcast and Frontier), including: 

 Finance - Franchise fee collection, audits, insurance and bonds 

 Centralized Customer Service Regulation – all complaint calls should come to MACC 

 TVCTV’s Public and Government Access programming services – a division of MACC 

 General administration and compliance with Federal cable television franchising rules 

 Coordination of the Public Communications Network (PCN) 

 

Q2: How does MACC operate? 

 

A: Each member jurisdiction is an equal partner in MACC.  Jurisdictions appoint a MACC 

Commissioner who participates, reviews and recommends new and renewed cable television 

franchises along with other administrative chores.  When MACC recommends a cable franchise, 

the MACC IGA requires that every affected member jurisdiction approve the franchise in order to 

make it effective.  For the recommended Comcast franchise, that requires all 15 members.  For the 

recommended CenturyLink franchise, the five affected members’ governing boards must approve.    

 

Q3: How are cable television franchise negotiations different than other negotiations? 

 

A: Incumbent Cable Operators, such as Comcast, have the right to renew their franchise through 

negotiation.  While there are certain limiting federal laws and requirements, a company already in 

the Right of Way has rights to continue service unless it has failed to perform, or it will not meet 

the demonstrated needs of the communities it serves.   

 

Competitive Cable Operators, such as CenturyLink, also have certain rights to provide cable 

television service over new or existing facilities.  These competitive cable franchises cannot be 

unreasonably denied.  

 

Q4: What benefits does the Comcast franchise provide my jurisdiction? 

 

A: The primary benefits are financial, reduced-cost connectivity and customer service regulation:  

 The 5% franchise fee paid by Comcast provides about $6.5million to the member jurisdictions 

each year.   The Franchise provides for continued fee review and audit functions by MACC.  

 PCN service costs are reduced and now available to the City. 

 Public Meeting coverage through TVCTV is secured, and upgraded to High Definition (HD). 

 The PEG/PCN Fee is set at 80¢/month, a lower cost than previously, but enough to fully 

support these programs. 

 Complementary TV service will continue to be provided to public buildings. 

___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 181 of 219



 

Q5: What benefits does the CenturyLink franchise provide my jurisdiction? 

 

A: In addition to the benefits provided by the also-recommended Comcast franchise (which the 

CenturyLink franchise generally matches or exceeds), the CenturyLink franchise provides the 

opportunity for cable customers in North Plains to have another choice in the video marketplace.  In 

addition, a landline competitor provides funding to the City through the franchise fee – current 

alternatives Dish and DirecTV do not.   

 

Q6: What is non-negotiable in a cable television franchise? 

 

A: Federal Law restricts local governments from negotiating: 

 Rates for service or equipment. 

 Programming – either including or excluding any particular channel. 

 The type of technology a cable operator uses to transmit its signals. 

 Franchise provisions re: Comcast’s Internet services. 

 And, the amount of the franchise fee is capped under the Cable Act at 5% of Gross Revenue. 

 

Q7: How does this franchise address competition issues? 

 

A: In both franchises, MACC and the companies tried to ensure a level playing field.  Cable television 

is an increasingly competitive environment, with new options and providers every day.  In the 

Comcast franchise, certain provisions were inserted to ensure the viability of the franchise, 

regardless of new technology or regulation.  The CenturyLink franchise simply mirrors many of the 

integral Comcast franchise requirements. 

 

Q8: When will these Franchises be effective? 

 

A: The Comcast franchise will be effective retroactively back to July 1, following the approval of all 

15 MACC jurisdictions.  This is expected in early September.   CenturyLink’s franchise could be 

through that process shortly after that time. 

 

 

For additional questions about the renewal process, contact Fred Christ, MACC Administrator at  

503-645-7365 x206 or at fchrist@maccor.org.  MACC’s website is: www.maccor.org 

 

 

 

 

 

___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 182 of 219

mailto:fchrist@maccor.org
http://www.maccor.org/


 

Agenda Item No: 9C     

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 

Date:  July 20, 2015 

To:  Mayor and City Council 

From:  City Manager Blake Boyles 

Subject: June 2015 Check Register 

Background:  At the second City Council meeting of each month staff has provided a 
print out of the check register batches showing the checks that were issued the previous 
month. These reports are broken down to the individual batches of check runs. There is 
detail listed that may be beneficial in explaining the expense. 
 
To assist Council with reviewing the check register, the account prefixes for departments 
are below: 
 
110-411 Culture and Recreation 
110-419 General Government 
110-421 Police 
110-433 Public Works 
110-452 Parks 
110-455 Library 
110-465 Planning 
111-000 Streets 
210-000 Water 
130-000 TDT Tax Fund 
131-000 Parks Capital 
132-000 Traffic Impact Fee 
009-000 Vehicle and Equipment Reserve Fund 
113-000 Urban Renewal Agency 
 
Fiscal Impact:   The register reflects actual expenses of the City.  All payments to 
vendors, consultants and other agencies are shown on the registers, as well as 
reimbursements to employees. Payroll checks are the only expenses not reflected on 
the register.  
 
Recommendation:  This item is informational only. 

___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 183 of 219



User:

Printed: 06/11/2015 -  1:07PM

sbaker

Computer Check Proof List by Vendor

''Accounts Payable

Batch: 00001.06.2015 - June 1

Invoice No Description Amount Payment Date Acct Number Reference

Vendor: ALE060 ALEXIN ANALYTICAL LABORATORIES, INC Check Sequence: 1 ACH Enabled: False

22219  145.00 06/10/2015 210-433-330112

 145.00Check Total:

Vendor: ASI075 ASIFlex Check Sequence: 2 ACH Enabled: False

May 2015 ASI Flex period beginning  18.75 06/10/2015 110-419-621000

 18.75Check Total:

Vendor: AWA029 AWARD SPECIALITIES Check Sequence: 3 ACH Enabled: False

121429 Tree Swallow Bird House  26.00 06/10/2015 110-419-610000

 26.00Check Total:

Vendor: BEE001 BEERY, ELSNER & HAMMOND, LLP Check Sequence: 4 ACH Enabled: False

12295 General  638.20 06/10/2015 110-419-330100

12295 Landuse  2,150.70 06/10/2015 110-419-330100

12295 Personnel  3,390.75 06/10/2015 110-419-330100

 6,179.65Check Total:

Vendor: BOTELLO Ana Botello Check Sequence: 5 ACH Enabled: False

05232015 cleaning dep $ 400.00 and Alch dep $400.00  800.00 06/10/2015 110-000-200011

 800.00Check Total:

Vendor: CPT001 COMMUNITY NEWSPAPER/PORTLAND TRIBUNE Check Sequence: 6 ACH Enabled: False

15779005 Garage Sale Day Forest Grove News  151.20 06/10/2015 110-419-540000

15779005 Garage Sale Day Hillsboro Tribune  151.20 06/10/2015 110-419-540000

15783166 Discover 2015 Special Section 1  250.00 06/10/2015 110-419-540000

 552.40Check Total:

AP-Computer Check Proof List by Vendor (06/11/2015 -  1:07 PM) Page 1

___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 184 of 219

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=ALE060
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=ALE060
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=e5d56200-2e1d-485e-802b-8df88876a585
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:210-433-330112
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=ASI075
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=ASI075
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0d0d4ce2-b2db-478d-a22d-9e61c7fd7c6f
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-419-621000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=AWA029
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=AWA029
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0b467c85-deaa-4b83-8107-f6b2ab5f62b0
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-419-610000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=BEE001
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=BEE001
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=60cca97d-4b7a-40ab-92fb-7abbde4a2cf6
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-419-330100
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=bddb1dc1-0bcf-4974-bed3-7ad09b0aa62e
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-419-330100
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=4c73b7b6-ab65-4404-9692-de32c96623a9
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-419-330100
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=BOTELLO
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=BOTELLO
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=577fa3c8-01b8-486b-a32d-5d401d6bf90a
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-000-200011
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=CPT001
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=CPT001
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=87813237-6ddc-4cd4-9f75-a4ee2faacf9c
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-419-540000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=81c54d76-757b-4723-862b-5b024a8ded8a
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-419-540000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=c4127cba-f97d-4dbc-9221-0ce11d47f6be
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-419-540000


Invoice No Description Amount Payment Date Acct Number Reference

Vendor: DAILOO1 DAILEY'S GOODYEAR AUT0 & TIRE Check Sequence: 7 ACH Enabled: False

27372 2014 Chevy E259533  578.92 06/10/2015 110-421-630000

 578.92Check Total:

Vendor: DDD100 DOUBLE DOG DARE U EVENTS Check Sequence: 8 ACH Enabled: False

05302015 Alcohol Deposit  400.00 06/10/2015 110-000-200011

05302015 Public Assembly Deposit  150.00 06/10/2015 110-000-200011

 550.00Check Total:

Vendor: FER060 FERRELLGAS Check Sequence: 9 ACH Enabled: False

1087542543  204.09 06/10/2015 110-433-610224

RNT5978530  75.00 06/10/2015 110-433-610224

 279.09Check Total:

Vendor: HDS040 HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS LTD. Check Sequence: 10 ACH Enabled: False

D928066  1,135.80 06/10/2015 210-433-630000

 1,135.80Check Total:

Vendor: LEX080 LEXIPOL, LLC Check Sequence: 11 ACH Enabled: False

13754 Law Enforcement policy manual 07/01/2015-06/30/2016  1,950.00 06/10/2015 110-000-100200

 1,950.00Check Total:

Vendor: MOON MOONLIGHT BPO Check Sequence: 12 ACH Enabled: False

95971 statement printing and postage  589.09 06/10/2015 210-433-330104

95972 newsletter printing  612.00 06/10/2015 110-419-330104

 1,201.09Check Total:

Vendor: NPE001 NORTH PLAINS EVENTS ASSOCIATION Check Sequence: 13 ACH Enabled: False

3 Alcohol Insurance Coverage for 4th of July  1,230.00 06/10/2015 110-000-100200

 1,230.00Check Total:

Vendor: OHA100 OHA Cashier Check Sequence: 14 ACH Enabled: False

3858 Mike Schoelich cross connection  17.50 06/10/2015 110-433-300000

 17.50Check Total:

Vendor: ORE011 OR. DEPT. OF REVENUE- Fines Check Sequence: 15 ACH Enabled: False

May 2015 May 1 - May 31 2015  228.00 06/10/2015 110-421-820000

AP-Computer Check Proof List by Vendor (06/11/2015 -  1:07 PM) Page 2

___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 185 of 219

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=DAILOO1
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=DAILOO1
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=afa4ca6c-ebdb-4ccd-ae10-033bea773684
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-421-630000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=DDD100
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=DDD100
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=e9186202-6d5c-4fa4-afc8-41e3d51cabf5
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-000-200011
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=72769a25-9a77-480e-ae27-49409908c296
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-000-200011
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=FER060
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=FER060
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=3f655d95-889c-4215-a8b9-154823242df3
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-433-610224
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=8f850563-0fc4-4280-91ee-b89a35e41699
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-433-610224
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=HDS040
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=HDS040
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=907e3c93-6cbe-4325-8ac1-e69961373813
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:210-433-630000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=LEX080
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=LEX080
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=f598a93f-30ad-4a1d-83f6-366e7c9e90fb
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-000-100200
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=MOON
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=MOON
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=109d6144-d84a-4a2e-8733-b21d76ceaca4
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:210-433-330104
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=04f87976-1a0b-4126-8da4-b51abfe2f602
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-419-330104
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=NPE001
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=NPE001
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=79003959-0635-4f72-9d87-6a13017eecf3
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-000-100200
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=OHA100
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=OHA100
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=f73e8a3c-184d-41f7-af1d-289b63b727c7
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-433-300000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=ORE011
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=ORE011
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=d8899b7b-5b2a-476c-a8df-fe9c7a15b34d
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-421-820000


Invoice No Description Amount Payment Date Acct Number Reference

 228.00Check Total:

Vendor: ORPERS OREGON PERS Check Sequence: 16 ACH Enabled: False

2192 July 1,2015 - June 30, 2016 based on the number of W2s submitted  16.50 06/10/2015 110-000-100200

 16.50Check Total:

Vendor: POA100 PACIFIC OFFICE AUTOMATION Check Sequence: 17 ACH Enabled: False

45481487 City Hall copier  816.20 06/10/2015 110-419-340100

 816.20Check Total:

Vendor: POAOVER Pacific Office Automation Check Sequence: 18 ACH Enabled: False

639129 Quarterly Overage  139.03 06/10/2015 110-419-330104

 139.03Check Total:

Vendor: RON060 RON-JONS UNLIMITED, INC. Check Sequence: 19 ACH Enabled: False

22997  166.90 06/10/2015 110-452-340000

23345  166.00 06/10/2015 110-452-340000

 332.90Check Total:

Vendor: SER110 SERVICE AMERICA COMMERCIAL SERVICES, INC. Check Sequence: 20 ACH Enabled: False

27577 Library  175.00 06/10/2015 110-455-330106

27577 City Hall  195.00 06/10/2015 110-419-330106

 370.00Check Total:

Vendor: SPEAK Speak, INC Check Sequence: 21 ACH Enabled: False

NPP-02757  150.00 06/10/2015 110-421-330000

 150.00Check Total:

Vendor: SPR075 SPRINGBROOK SOFTWARE, INC. Check Sequence: 22 ACH Enabled: False

INV30872 Annual Maintenance 07/01/2015-06/30/2016  8,369.66 06/10/2015 110-000-100200

 8,369.66Check Total:

Vendor: SUN001 SUNSHINE INC. Check Sequence: 23 ACH Enabled: False

796410  559.69 06/10/2015 110-433-610224

 559.69Check Total:

AP-Computer Check Proof List by Vendor (06/11/2015 -  1:07 PM) Page 3

___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 186 of 219

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=ORPERS
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=ORPERS
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=e80cc3db-ec81-4bf1-b05a-31aff7592b9a
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-000-100200
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=POA100
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=POA100
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=c44824d2-8663-4401-954b-2874cedc1acf
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-419-340100
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=POAOVER
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=POAOVER
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=b41d9e88-28d1-46c7-8acb-1d18eadd9871
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-419-330104
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=RON060
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=RON060
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=5123461a-c467-4552-a1d9-4a4220855c04
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-452-340000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=d6a820d0-f06c-4fca-b463-1de83322e29d
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-452-340000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=SER110
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=SER110
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0d7f28d6-b4ef-4680-ac79-86a1096773f6
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-455-330106
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=fe3e334b-fd4d-4841-a28b-10584699a52e
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-419-330106
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=SPEAK
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=SPEAK
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=022f0133-3fce-423e-8180-10811d9d5cde
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-421-330000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=SPR075
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=SPR075
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=9ef4e1db-30e1-4270-ab59-3dbb71552609
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-000-100200
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=SUN001
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=SUN001
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=614e3d59-5114-4d00-b70f-e8d6e5034f90
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-433-610224


Invoice No Description Amount Payment Date Acct Number Reference

Vendor: TCM060 TEMP CONTROL MECHANICAL Check Sequence: 24 ACH Enabled: False

761033 City Hall  309.00 06/10/2015 110-419-340101

 309.00Check Total:

Vendor: THA002 THAYER COMPANY Check Sequence: 25 ACH Enabled: False

949199-0  90.09 06/10/2015 110-419-610000

 90.09Check Total:

Vendor: WAS001 WASHINGTON COUNTY - FINANCE Check Sequence: 26 ACH Enabled: False

May 2015  148.00 06/10/2015 110-421-820000

 148.00Check Total:

Vendor: WCC006 WCCCA Check Sequence: 27 ACH Enabled: False

20150526629 1st Qtr FY 15-16 Dispatch Fees  3,199.00 06/10/2015 110-000-100200

 3,199.00Check Total:

Total for Check Run:

Total of Number of Checks:

 29,392.27

 27

AP-Computer Check Proof List by Vendor (06/11/2015 -  1:07 PM) Page 4

___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 187 of 219

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=TCM060
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=TCM060
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=6b919205-fbe7-451d-9615-fa840dc114fe
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-419-340101
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=THA002
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=THA002
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=eeed1a81-2188-4741-afa3-32faf7e6dcfc
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-419-610000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=WAS001
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=WAS001
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=5ae6aa7d-9d1e-412a-bb85-ef90e981b7eb
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-421-820000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=WCC006
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=WCC006
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=89a32206-3716-42c4-9982-26bc1e7f71c2
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-000-100200


User:

Printed: 06/17/2015 -  3:18PM

sbaker

Computer Check Proof List by Vendor

''Accounts Payable

Batch: 00002.06.2015 - June 2

Invoice No Description Amount Payment Date Acct Number Reference

Vendor: 3JCON 3J Consulting, Inc. Check Sequence: 1 ACH Enabled: False

1688 14-240 McKay Creek Crossing SD  342.00 06/18/2015 110-465-330000

1693 15-268 Jewett Cameron Industrial Buildings  576.00 06/18/2015 110-465-330000

1694 15-271 Verboort Gordon Road Partition  409.00 06/18/2015 110-465-330000

1695 15-267 North Plains Planning On-Call  957.00 06/18/2015 110-465-330000

1696 14-240.20 NW Cottage Property LLA and Variance Application  1,433.00 06/18/2015 110-465-330000

1697 14-240.10 Eggiman Zone Change  1,574.46 06/18/2015 110-465-330000

 5,291.46Check Total:

Vendor: AFL030 AFLAC Check Sequence: 2 ACH Enabled: False

496072  243.09 06/18/2015 110-000-200002

 243.09Check Total:

Vendor: ASC103 ASCAP Check Sequence: 3 ACH Enabled: False

2016 Concerts in the Park  335.00 06/18/2015 110-000-100200

 335.00Check Total:

Vendor: AT&027 AT&T WIRELESS SERVICE Check Sequence: 4 ACH Enabled: False

6132015  32.32 06/18/2015 110-433-310000

 32.32Check Total:

Vendor: BLU001 BLUMENTHAL UNIFORMS & EQUIP. Check Sequence: 5 ACH Enabled: False

141465 B.Snyder Shirt  30.00 06/18/2015 110-421-610100

 30.00Check Total:

Vendor: CIT010 CITY OF HILLSBORO - Police Dept. Check Sequence: 6 ACH Enabled: False

3186 FY 2014-2015 PPDS Fees  3,090.00 06/18/2015 110-421-330102

3186 HPD Records Service  600.00 06/18/2015 110-421-330109

3186 HPD Property  947.10 06/18/2015 110-421-330109

AP-Computer Check Proof List by Vendor (06/17/2015 -  3:18 PM) Page 1

___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 188 of 219

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=3JCON
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=3JCON
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=1fb9b272-e5b6-44fb-8b72-83d57949cbc7
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-465-330000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=4384eefc-d4cf-4922-a345-79b5311c209a
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-465-330000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=dfb24432-e805-4010-99af-9f7abfac33c6
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-465-330000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=d98cb612-4aa1-4f5e-9daa-5fec0e1d3365
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-465-330000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=40941fc3-40f3-4f9b-a68b-9312f5c8009e
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-465-330000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=adecdae1-d344-483c-a1d5-48d71ed8e983
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-465-330000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=AFL030
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=AFL030
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=a4d7de8c-2d78-468c-a33c-0347f628655b
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-000-200002
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=ASC103
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=ASC103
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=3ff05d4d-0d0f-4953-bf0b-5ea389ecd47f
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-000-100200
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=AT&027
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=AT&027
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=7d66517f-5be4-4367-8b06-d8b48e2d302c
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-433-310000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=BLU001
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=BLU001
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=414bc0f1-ee94-45bf-84a5-16b75b0f4800
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-421-610100
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=CIT010
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=CIT010
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=839c9ba6-2712-44ea-ab72-8f846a387df6
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-421-330102
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=2f783a4c-c4d4-4de1-bbf3-95e220f95c12
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-421-330109
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=96a7d180-da86-4bfd-9d4c-c2ec528bda67
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-421-330109


Invoice No Description Amount Payment Date Acct Number Reference

3186 HPD Property Maintenance  1,000.00 06/18/2015 110-421-330109

 5,637.10Check Total:

Vendor: CLE101 LAURA CLEMENCE Check Sequence: 7 ACH Enabled: False

06132015 Refund of Deposit  400.00 06/18/2015 110-000-200011

 400.00Check Total:

Vendor: CPT001 COMMUNITY NEWSPAPER/PORTLAND TRIBUNE Check Sequence: 8 ACH Enabled: False

06032015 Affidavit of Publication  222.75 06/18/2015 110-419-540000

06032015 Affidavit of Publication  141.75 06/18/2015 113-463-330000

06052015 Notice of Public Hearing  144.00 06/18/2015 110-465-360000

 508.50Check Total:

Vendor: DUY015 DUYCK'S GARAGE Check Sequence: 9 ACH Enabled: False

53079 Battery  99.00 06/18/2015 110-421-340000

 99.00Check Total:

Vendor: GLE001 GLEAMING THE VIEW Check Sequence: 10 ACH Enabled: False

7823 Window Cleaning  250.00 06/18/2015 110-455-330000

 250.00Check Total:

Vendor: DHMETAL Devin Hlavinka Check Sequence: 11 ACH Enabled: False

05272015 "A" frame, AR500, Round Hanger, Diamond Hanger  445.00 06/18/2015 110-421-300000

 445.00Check Total:

Vendor: ING060 INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES Check Sequence: 12 ACH Enabled: False

85302102  9.51 06/18/2015 110-455-640000

85380854  788.21 06/18/2015 110-455-640000

85456356  47.53 06/18/2015 110-455-640000

85543696  386.64 06/18/2015 110-455-640000

85607267  10.43 06/18/2015 110-455-640000

85687255  467.15 06/18/2015 110-455-640000

 1,709.47Check Total:

Vendor: INLAY Jeff Inlay Check Sequence: 13 ACH Enabled: False

624151 Alphabeticians  300.00 06/18/2015 110-455-610000

AP-Computer Check Proof List by Vendor (06/17/2015 -  3:18 PM) Page 2

___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 189 of 219

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=7b21f586-bd4e-450b-a6bb-a3c8c47cd7ad
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-421-330109
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=CLE101
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=CLE101
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=4bc403ed-5678-4abc-9767-64418d23cab7
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-000-200011
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=CPT001
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=CPT001
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=1a930fd1-92e7-4e71-8ecf-1c06fdea12e4
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-419-540000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=2d18a639-7d3f-44ac-9c76-30358491c038
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:113-463-330000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=b525802a-d543-4780-bb9c-b9700c8509ce
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-465-360000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=DUY015
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=DUY015
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=f7d8b372-6186-4e5b-a5d2-3ebc96d9a6eb
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-421-340000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=GLE001
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=GLE001
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=884d6ba8-60cb-445a-844d-51500dd98bfb
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-455-330000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=DHMETAL
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=DHMETAL
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=7def404d-e41e-42c0-a263-6b321bf23c93
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-421-300000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=ING060
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=ING060
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=bb8ca6ca-58b3-47df-b9ad-ee025924d0ff
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-455-640000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=83c8b5a8-fe67-4855-ada7-1ec587a21af2
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-455-640000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=a8ea7cc7-41b3-49c9-9bb7-b965e8a19226
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-455-640000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=dac7e29d-82ba-4bb2-b26e-35c5dff83cd6
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-455-640000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=a82ad343-605c-4abe-95eb-59e5bc9d1205
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-455-640000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=ef6b6e11-9044-4ff2-9926-32c267a1ac3d
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-455-640000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=INLAY
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=INLAY
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=86aed3ef-fe93-437e-95c3-cdd561999ac7
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-455-610000


Invoice No Description Amount Payment Date Acct Number Reference

 300.00Check Total:

Vendor: KIN011 KIND CARE Check Sequence: 14 ACH Enabled: False

17747 Carpet Cleaning  245.00 06/18/2015 110-455-330000

 245.00Check Total:

Vendor: NELSON Sheila Nelson Check Sequence: 15 ACH Enabled: False

06152015 Pens from Masters inc  283.75 06/18/2015 110-455-610000

 283.75Check Total:

Vendor: POA100 PACIFIC OFFICE AUTOMATION Check Sequence: 16 ACH Enabled: False

45956058 Library copier  224.72 06/18/2015 110-455-340100

 224.72Check Total:

Vendor: PEA100 PEACE OFFICERS RESEARCH ASSOCIATION OF CALIFORNIA Check Sequence: 17 ACH Enabled: False

137178 July 2015  108.00 06/18/2015 110-000-100200

 108.00Check Total:

Vendor: PEDERSEN Greta Pedersen Check Sequence: 18 ACH Enabled: False

62415 Accent on Music Performance by Greta Pedersen  325.00 06/18/2015 110-455-610000

 325.00Check Total:

Vendor: ROSLING Ben Rosling Check Sequence: 19 ACH Enabled: False

12052014 Reissue pay check form 12/05/2014  321.91 06/18/2015 110-433-110000

 321.91Check Total:

Vendor: RHH010 ROVING HORSE HENNA Check Sequence: 20 ACH Enabled: False

62515 Workshop with Wendy  190.00 06/18/2015 110-455-610000

 190.00Check Total:

Vendor: TRA007 TRAFFIC SAFETY SUPPLY CO., INC Check Sequence: 21 ACH Enabled: False

998951 Termal Tape  1,111.50 06/18/2015 111-433-610000

 1,111.50Check Total:

Vendor: ADT090 TYCO INTEGRATED SECURITY Check Sequence: 22 ACH Enabled: False

24485563 Library  208.59 06/18/2015 110-455-330107

AP-Computer Check Proof List by Vendor (06/17/2015 -  3:18 PM) Page 3

___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 190 of 219

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=KIN011
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=KIN011
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=13fb38cf-2dd9-483c-93c1-ad8a019813f1
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-455-330000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=NELSON
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=NELSON
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=90f36ec4-d6ae-410c-9e0d-23fe8289d1f7
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-455-610000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=POA100
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=POA100
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=7c210744-bf41-411d-825b-0a3481c5fa9b
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-455-340100
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=PEA100
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=PEA100
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=e8ef4e9c-bec3-4c87-99d6-3cc7b194f901
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-000-100200
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=PEDERSEN
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=PEDERSEN
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=6eb42795-4bf6-4d5e-b6da-48f342db37ee
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-455-610000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=ROSLING
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=ROSLING
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=1c8101e2-b6ca-4191-8c26-b66a51c3a561
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-433-110000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=RHH010
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=RHH010
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=4ed55406-3d9d-4177-8cac-36d74efa7724
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-455-610000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=TRA007
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=TRA007
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=5a69f7b1-23a7-4e29-be7f-ff76de06b726
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:111-433-610000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=ADT090
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=ADT090
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=a08a7990-0a8c-43fc-925f-0e409af92a28
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-455-330107


Invoice No Description Amount Payment Date Acct Number Reference

 208.59Check Total:

Vendor: VER001 VERIZON WIRELESS Check Sequence: 23 ACH Enabled: False

9746902042  360.11 06/18/2015 110-421-330108

 360.11Check Total:

Vendor: VIS004 VISA/ CARDMEMBER SERVICE Check Sequence: 24 ACH Enabled: False

BB 05/27/2015 Lowes  139.80 06/18/2015 111-433-610000

BB 05/27/2015 National Parts Corp  291.72 06/18/2015 110-433-610000

BB 05/27/2015 Hardhitter.com  197.04 06/18/2015 110-433-610000

BB 05/27/2015 Albertsons  9.94 06/18/2015 110-433-610000

BB 05/27/2015 Albertsons - Clean up day  18.08 06/18/2015 110-419-610000

BB 05/27/2015 Hanks - Clean up day  26.97 06/18/2015 110-419-610000

BB 05/27/2015 BFT, LP  222.99 06/18/2015 110-452-610000

BB 05/27/2015 Coastal Farm and Ranch  15.66 06/18/2015 110-452-610000

BB 05/27/2015 Craigs list  25.00 06/18/2015 110-419-540000

BB 05/27/2015 Office Depot  15.28 06/18/2015 110-419-610000

BB 05/27/2015 C and C Smart Food  134.40 06/18/2015 110-411-300111

BS 05/27/2015 City of PDX - Parking  1.60 06/18/2015 110-421-330000

CA 05/27/2015 USPS  3.02 06/18/2015 110-455-610000

CA 05/27/2015 USPS  2.56 06/18/2015 110-455-610000

CA 05/27/2015 USPS  3.61 06/18/2015 110-455-610000

CA 05/27/2015 Grocery outlet  7.46 06/18/2015 110-455-610000

CA 05/27/2015 USPS  2.56 06/18/2015 110-455-610000

CA 05/27/2015 USPS  7.81 06/18/2015 110-455-610000

DB 05/27/2015 Farmington Gardens  25.00 06/18/2015 110-455-610000

DB 05/27/2015 Little Caesars  44.00 06/18/2015 110-455-610000

DB 05/27/2015 OR Library Association  55.00 06/18/2015 110-455-300000

DB 05/27/2015 Office Depot  10.98 06/18/2015 110-455-610000

DB 05/27/2015 Amazon  48.13 06/18/2015 110-455-640000

DM 05/27/2015 Credit - Amazon -0.02 06/18/2015 110-455-640000

DM 05/27/2015 Credit - Amazon -0.05 06/18/2015 110-455-640000

DM 05/27/2015 Amazon  39.99 06/18/2015 110-455-610000

DM 05/27/2015 Amazon  7.28 06/18/2015 110-455-640000

DM 05/27/2015 Amazon  11.96 06/18/2015 110-455-640000

DM 05/27/2015 Amazon  14.96 06/18/2015 110-455-640000

DM 05/27/2015 Amazon  27.80 06/18/2015 110-455-640000

DM 05/27/2015 Amazon  21.52 06/18/2015 110-455-640000

JP 05/27/2015 Return Tactical Tailor Corp -202.70 06/18/2015 110-421-610000

JP 05/27/2015 BJs Restaurant  18.00 06/18/2015 110-421-300000

JW 05/27/2015 Credit Amazon -0.01 06/18/2015 110-455-640000

AP-Computer Check Proof List by Vendor (06/17/2015 -  3:18 PM) Page 4

___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 191 of 219

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=VER001
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=VER001
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=a0cdc01c-c329-44a8-a51b-33ecef170b1a
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-421-330108
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=VIS004
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=VIS004
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=b9a41f5c-550b-47cb-a3df-596e704c0737
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:111-433-610000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=2cf6629d-2d46-4ba0-9282-3bb4fd20a16e
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-433-610000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=ddca28ea-d468-482c-bb7d-7cf423d605dc
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-433-610000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=836c923b-aac1-483c-ae2a-0ef12890f382
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-433-610000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=2fea5529-6bd3-4e62-a34a-1593deecd153
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-419-610000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=f4b9aee1-1ece-44b5-bf4c-fb6a28a873c0
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-419-610000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0bd398d5-83e5-4413-8a20-f12942b223cf
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-452-610000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=84533412-3eac-40cb-9dc5-3dc4cf79de49
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-452-610000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=8f2fa940-001b-4821-a09a-b8d17ac5bbb1
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-419-540000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=e4bda8cc-495f-45c3-be2f-82ffcb00301d
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-419-610000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=38722969-7041-4aba-8c48-b89e631a59ae
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-411-300111
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=c70e34a9-beda-4fa7-9dfa-99de34a344f6
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-421-330000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=3a7ba41c-4eff-4304-9e67-18faa0b93562
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-455-610000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=214b5cb9-fda2-4b35-9419-cc5b603778b4
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-455-610000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=c990ab04-08b2-4bc3-be01-c321564f8555
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-455-610000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=e5b3fe5d-9176-4314-a59d-0598586f6f4e
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-455-610000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=dbe835b9-4aa7-41a1-93c4-fe0c9c8f52af
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-455-610000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=a9e71f74-fe27-4b82-98e0-ff2bf41adae7
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-455-610000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=31799b30-5293-41db-8ff7-7c122bb59874
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-455-610000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=4c694844-f0f3-4d9a-ad5b-613cd3fcea04
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-455-610000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=59b7e5c7-e8bc-4f6b-bc6a-464c780b09c3
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-455-300000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=ba586f9c-9fcd-44a4-b22d-70a2fce0ac97
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-455-610000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=bd931069-fdde-45bd-8bd4-a3b607010283
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-455-640000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=aa368fc3-a722-4474-ae8b-958c7e731312
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-455-640000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=a3eebc1f-80e0-4721-8b43-dc7bc14af152
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-455-640000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=6cd07eb6-e149-4f2a-9626-8dc9bfaa5ab5
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-455-610000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=19073628-20b0-4e1b-963e-01358d22445d
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-455-640000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=9cbc6efd-3a5b-48f4-971b-4264273b7473
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-455-640000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=06c9b4d6-8ecc-4b3c-bc4c-11991375a61e
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-455-640000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=08006eb3-b74a-4665-af0a-3aa9b3fbd228
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-455-640000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=1161cb25-e045-440a-856c-74942c5b9d8b
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-455-640000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=d949c71a-8c5a-4ec5-b94c-12a60caada67
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-421-610000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=b7edfa60-0967-4726-81c0-16d43730f226
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-421-300000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=2e51f834-c505-42b3-9ef8-cd2b3f1850e0
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-455-640000


Invoice No Description Amount Payment Date Acct Number Reference

JW 05/27/2015 PBD ALA-Graph  47.00 06/18/2015 110-455-610000

JW 05/27/2015 PBD ALA-Graph  18.00 06/18/2015 110-455-610000

JW 05/27/2015 Amazon  12.43 06/18/2015 110-455-610000

JW 05/27/2015 Amazon  4.99 06/18/2015 110-455-610000

JW 05/27/2015 Amazon  5.30 06/18/2015 110-455-610000

JW 05/27/2015 Amazon  45.12 06/18/2015 110-455-640000

JW 05/27/2015 Amazon  44.00 06/18/2015 110-455-610000

MD 05/27/2015 Facebook  122.73 06/18/2015 110-419-330000

MD 05/27/2015 Surveymonkey  204.00 06/18/2015 110-419-330000

MR 05/27/2015 Wa Co Custom Mailing List  50.00 06/18/2015 110-465-330000

SB 05/27/2015 Paper Direct  5.00 06/18/2015 110-419-610000

SN 05/27/2015 CostCo Photo Center  71.37 06/18/2015 110-455-610000

SN 05/27/2015 Amazon  5.50 06/18/2015 110-455-610000

 1,882.78Check Total:

Vendor: WAS001 WASHINGTON COUNTY - FINANCE Check Sequence: 25 ACH Enabled: False

06082015 Assessment of Lien satisfaction  46.00 06/18/2015 110-419-330000

 46.00Check Total:

Vendor: WES025 WESTERN DISPLAY FIREWORKS, LTD Check Sequence: 26 ACH Enabled: False

15-4763 Fireworks  7,500.00 06/18/2015 110-000-100200

 7,500.00Check Total:

Vendor: WHI001 WHITEHORSE GRAPHIC SERVICES Check Sequence: 27 ACH Enabled: False

28572 Letterhead  297.00 06/18/2015 110-419-610000

 297.00Check Total:

Total for Check Run:

Total of Number of Checks:

 28,385.30

 27

AP-Computer Check Proof List by Vendor (06/17/2015 -  3:18 PM) Page 5

___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 192 of 219

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=6f4196f3-f422-48ef-8926-4874b39d7983
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-455-610000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=c9bbe4ba-cb3d-422b-9b47-89e22919c34d
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-455-610000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=1ab96b4f-ec48-4d43-b9dc-9d0a9a83f96a
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-455-610000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=5150f9ba-06d4-4093-bcdd-31925b1698e3
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-455-610000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=d5498adc-1e91-4cb5-9859-6cb5074689f4
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-455-610000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=9fabaa5d-046f-446e-8126-df30d4b31126
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-455-640000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=112fbe01-cfda-4ba7-bec7-88a85f6a7135
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-455-610000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=d4db3c19-2c53-4673-9323-b1b08d363f01
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-419-330000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=f21a6e67-9906-47a9-b685-fb6d23522284
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-419-330000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=4509ce4e-48b9-4a17-8c5f-197931439254
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-465-330000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=37d8488f-5a4c-4738-9793-c76c9f1c66d8
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-419-610000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=6e4f2456-68b2-4581-95ce-a1e2e13aef00
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-455-610000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=bb062bdb-e3b5-45ab-8249-2217b6fb9ab0
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-455-610000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=WAS001
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=WAS001
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=01f98a6d-b350-4297-9ea3-2da79841c49c
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-419-330000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=WES025
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=WES025
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=c22b7d02-5e86-4d1b-a79e-c4becd195d9a
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-000-100200
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=WHI001
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=WHI001
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=25efb214-0cc4-4785-98a9-9833306ea607
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-419-610000


User:

Printed: 06/30/2015 - 10:30AM

sbaker

Computer Check Proof List by Vendor

''Accounts Payable

Batch: 00003.06.2015 - June 3

Invoice No Description Amount Payment Date Acct Number Reference

Vendor: AIR101 AIRGAS USA LLC Check Sequence: 1 ACH Enabled: False

9040707950  21.44 06/30/2015 110-433-610000

 21.44Check Total:

Vendor: SRA001 Scott Aldrich Check Sequence: 2 ACH Enabled: False

July 40% July payment for 4th of July consultant  1,680.00 06/30/2015 110-000-100200

 1,680.00Check Total:

Vendor: ALE060 ALEXIN ANALYTICAL LABORATORIES, INC Check Sequence: 3 ACH Enabled: False

22561 Routine Coliform and E Coli Bacteria in drinking water  116.00 06/30/2015 210-433-330112

 116.00Check Total:

Vendor: UB*00641 JESSAMYN BOTHWELL Check Sequence: 4 ACH Enabled: False

Refund Check  65.27 06/26/2015 210-000-200200

 65.27Check Total:

Vendor: UB*00642 CYNTHIA CALDERON Check Sequence: 5 ACH Enabled: False

Refund Check  3.74 06/26/2015 210-000-200200

 3.74Check Total:

Vendor: UB*00636 LEE CAP Check Sequence: 6 ACH Enabled: False

Refund Check  54.57 06/26/2015 210-000-200200

 54.57Check Total:

Vendor: UB*00643 CHARLOTTE CLARK Check Sequence: 7 ACH Enabled: False

Refund Check  11.95 06/26/2015 210-000-200200

 11.95Check Total:

AP-Computer Check Proof List by Vendor (06/30/2015 - 10:30 AM) Page 1

___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 193 of 219

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=AIR101
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=AIR101
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=c9587d75-826d-4002-9814-cf751fe1baa5
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-433-610000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=SRA001
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=SRA001
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=7826d02e-a717-4ef2-8b2d-005b5efb557a
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-000-100200
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=ALE060
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=ALE060
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=9583dbab-5894-413c-a22d-e332c0333a5b
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:210-433-330112
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=UB*00641
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=UB*00641
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:210-000-200200
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=UB*00642
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=UB*00642
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:210-000-200200
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=UB*00636
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=UB*00636
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:210-000-200200
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=UB*00643
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=UB*00643
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:210-000-200200


Invoice No Description Amount Payment Date Acct Number Reference

Vendor: UB*00639 ELAINE HENDRIKS* Check Sequence: 8 ACH Enabled: False

Refund Check  45.97 06/26/2015 210-000-200200

 45.97Check Total:

Vendor: UB*00638 WILLIAM HESTER***INTERIM*** Check Sequence: 9 ACH Enabled: False

Refund Check  26.25 06/26/2015 210-000-200200

 26.25Check Total:

Vendor: UB*00637 J.T. ROTH CONSTRUCTION INC. Check Sequence: 10 ACH Enabled: False

Refund Check  67.64 06/26/2015 210-000-200200

 67.64Check Total:

Vendor: LEE010 LEEDWAY, LLC Check Sequence: 11 ACH Enabled: False

06271505 Ballistic Shield  999.95 06/30/2015 110-421-610000

 999.95Check Total:

Vendor: LOPEZ001 Jose David Lopez Check Sequence: 12 ACH Enabled: False

06282015 Refund of JM rental Deposit  400.00 06/30/2015 110-000-200011

 400.00Check Total:

Vendor: UB*00640 SUMMER & STEVE MARTINDALE Check Sequence: 13 ACH Enabled: False

Refund Check  8.89 06/26/2015 210-000-200200

 8.89Check Total:

Vendor: WHISKY Terri McConnachie Check Sequence: 14 ACH Enabled: False

2015 Band - July 4th 07pm-09:30pm  1,650.00 06/30/2015 110-000-100200

 1,650.00Check Total:

Vendor: MET101 METEREADERS, LLC Check Sequence: 15 ACH Enabled: False

7137  745.59 06/30/2015 210-433-330111

 745.59Check Total:

Vendor: MET008 METRO NEW HOLLAND Check Sequence: 16 ACH Enabled: False

PI04471  77.50 06/30/2015 110-433-610000

 77.50Check Total:

AP-Computer Check Proof List by Vendor (06/30/2015 - 10:30 AM) Page 2

___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 194 of 219

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=UB*00639
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=UB*00639
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:210-000-200200
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=UB*00638
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=UB*00638
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:210-000-200200
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=UB*00637
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=UB*00637
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:210-000-200200
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=LEE010
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=LEE010
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=92214105-e94f-4c15-aa3c-41e19cc7876d
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-421-610000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=LOPEZ001
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=LOPEZ001
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=91a52f2f-5278-4a6b-9c0e-bfe71af12a99
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-000-200011
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=UB*00640
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=UB*00640
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:210-000-200200
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=WHISKY
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=WHISKY
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=c0f3ff26-a948-499d-8772-bb571823a93b
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-000-100200
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=MET101
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=MET101
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=86a27b75-28aa-4274-aa5e-260b2f3fce72
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:210-433-330111
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=MET008
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=MET008
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=56e37706-6aa5-472c-b709-daefe8162747
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-433-610000


Invoice No Description Amount Payment Date Acct Number Reference

Vendor: NPE001 NORTH PLAINS EVENTS ASSOCIATION Check Sequence: 17 ACH Enabled: False

2015 50% of proceeds from Clean Up Day Event  227.90 06/30/2015 110-411-300117

 227.90Check Total:

Vendor: 31360 Petty Cash Check Sequence: 18 ACH Enabled: False

Cash Bank Cash Bank for the 4th of July Event  300.00 06/30/2015 110-000-100000

 300.00Check Total:

Vendor: REG101 LIZ REGER Check Sequence: 19 ACH Enabled: False

2015 Band - July 4, 2015 10am-2pm  400.00 06/30/2015 110-000-100200

 400.00Check Total:

Vendor: REH001 MARGARET REH Check Sequence: 20 ACH Enabled: False

06192015 Training in Tacoma  186.29 06/30/2015 110-419-300000

 186.29Check Total:

Vendor: TCIC001 The Cincinnati Insurance Company Check Sequence: 21 ACH Enabled: False

2015 Annual Insurance for NPPL  1,578.00 06/30/2015 110-419-621000

 1,578.00Check Total:

Vendor: WSR050 WSR   WESTSIDE ROCK Check Sequence: 22 ACH Enabled: False

73113 3/4 Minus  458.49 06/30/2015 110-433-340000

 458.49Check Total:

Vendor: XOC001 XO COMMUNICATIONS Check Sequence: 23 ACH Enabled: False

0275640674  613.92 06/30/2015 110-419-310000

 613.92Check Total:

Total for Check Run:

Total of Number of Checks:

 9,739.36

 23

AP-Computer Check Proof List by Vendor (06/30/2015 - 10:30 AM) Page 3

___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 195 of 219

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=NPE001
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=NPE001
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=956aac59-90b7-4c22-80ef-0f68fcbc225c
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-411-300117
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=31360
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=31360
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=b9836a79-669f-4e2f-bc01-8db4daca4b41
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-000-100000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=REG101
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=REG101
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=9ff8ff33-cf3b-4ff5-b9fd-75e3d4222ada
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-000-100200
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=REH001
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=REH001
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=f1a40fbb-2782-433c-ba3f-63f75431168b
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-419-300000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=TCIC001
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=TCIC001
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=15b716ac-6a65-44a4-b429-f906719fe814
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-419-621000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=WSR050
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=WSR050
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=b2348bd6-03f8-4a8c-b878-ba31cf9bcec6
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-433-340000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=XOC001
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=XOC001
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=8bda5dfc-0961-49c0-be04-1adc10e8056b
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-419-310000


User:

Printed: 07/02/2015 - 10:14AM

sbaker

Computer Check Proof List by Vendor

''Accounts Payable

Batch: 00004.06.2015 - June ACH

Invoice No Description Amount Payment Date Acct Number Reference

Vendor: ADP001 ADP, INC. Check Sequence: 1 ACH Enabled: True

06122015  174.38 06/30/2015 110-419-330105

06262015 pay period ending 06/14/2015  206.30 06/30/2015 110-419-330105

 380.68Check Total:

Vendor: ASI100 ASI Flex - Auto Pay Check Sequence: 2 ACH Enabled: True

06062015 ASI Deductions for Pay Date  264.16 06/30/2015 110-000-200001

06202015 ASI Deductions for Pay Date 06/19/2015  264.16 06/30/2015 110-000-200001

 528.32Check Total:

Vendor: CHE001 CHEVRON Check Sequence: 3 ACH Enabled: True

44539411 Public Works  0.00 06/30/2015 110-433-610224

44539411 Police  943.55 06/30/2015 110-421-610224

 943.55Check Total:

Vendor: CIS015 CIS - EBS Check Sequence: 4 ACH Enabled: True

June 2015  52.12 06/30/2015 110-000-200005

June 2015  2,953.27 06/30/2015 110-433-210000

June 2015  2,320.75 06/30/2015 110-419-210000

June 2015  1,695.27 06/30/2015 110-421-210000

 7,021.41Check Total:

Vendor: CIT009 CITY OF HILLSBORO - Utility Billing Check Sequence: 5 ACH Enabled: True

1012327 Usage 7748  9,530.04 06/30/2015 210-433-610600

 9,530.04Check Total:

Vendor: COM001 COMCAST Check Sequence: 6 ACH Enabled: True

06132015 Library 06/03-07/02  89.26 06/30/2015 110-455-310000

06212015 Jessie Mays 06/09-07/08  49.34 06/30/2015 110-452-310000

AP-Computer Check Proof List by Vendor (07/02/2015 - 10:14 AM) Page 1

___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 196 of 219

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=ADP001
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=ADP001
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=c2e31bbb-8f3f-403c-999c-08349cb79704
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-419-330105
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=5504e0c7-aa74-4cf0-b9d9-c0718d222481
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-419-330105
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=ASI100
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=ASI100
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=2cb31913-12a5-4817-9058-6a6f8c9e7e54
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-000-200001
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=f191497d-befd-4540-b80d-9c6d23739a92
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-000-200001
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=CHE001
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=CHE001
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=60ca48b9-5a9c-407b-96de-7ce1d92929c2
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-433-610224
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=76ac2811-7917-4db2-90d8-68283c7b1c1b
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-421-610224
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=CIS015
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=CIS015
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=418dfb72-8a52-4cbf-92d7-3d8a618b2d72
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-000-200005
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=61c74a1c-8709-417d-a362-b1da0623072a
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-433-210000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=88ddea3a-375d-49be-8a71-0443bdaf86fc
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-419-210000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=596a0de7-4819-44a3-9e31-79ba7f05aa22
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-421-210000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=CIT009
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=CIT009
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=dbf148b8-82d8-45ff-9339-0a22a46ccedb
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:210-433-610600
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=COM001
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=COM001
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=d04480ad-707b-47dc-9377-1c369b25b6a1
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-455-310000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=40c55b62-b2e5-402d-85bd-4c6df966218a
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-452-310000


Invoice No Description Amount Payment Date Acct Number Reference

 138.60Check Total:

Vendor: CIT007 ING - State of OR Plan Check Sequence: 7 ACH Enabled: True

01302015 pay date 01/30/2015  1,250.00 06/30/2015 110-000-200003

06052015 pay date  1,250.00 06/30/2015 110-000-200003

06192015 pay date 06/19/2015  1,250.00 06/30/2015 110-000-200003

 3,750.00Check Total:

Vendor: MCB001 MCBEE BUSINESS PRODUCTS Check Sequence: 8 ACH Enabled: True

06032015 Checks  340.65 06/30/2015 110-419-610000

 340.65Check Total:

Vendor: NAB100 North American Bankcard Check Sequence: 9 ACH Enabled: True

June 2015 NPPL Credit Card Fees  7.95 06/30/2015 110-455-330000

 7.95Check Total:

Vendor: NOR014 NW NATURAL GAS CO. Check Sequence: 10 ACH Enabled: True

06162015 Yellow House 2752977-5 04/28/2015-05/29/2015  17.30 06/30/2015 110-419-310000

06162015 Library 1651678-3 04/28/2015-05/29/2015  147.08 06/30/2015 110-455-310000

06162015 City Hall 452946-7 04/28/2015-05/29/2015  91.80 06/30/2015 110-419-310000

06162015 Pump House 453113-3 04/28/2015-05/29/2015  164.79 06/30/2015 210-433-310000

06162015 JMCH 453042-4 04/28/2015-05/29/2015  102.87 06/30/2015 110-452-310000

 523.84Check Total:

Vendor: POA100 PACIFIC OFFICE AUTOMATION Check Sequence: 11 ACH Enabled: True

45841385 City Hall copier 05/15/2015-06/14/2015  816.20 06/30/2015 110-419-340100

 816.20Check Total:

Vendor: 02192 PERS Deposit Check Sequence: 12 ACH Enabled: True

June 2015 IAP  3,217.82 06/30/2015 110-000-200004

June 2015 Pension  5,761.81 06/30/2015 110-000-200004

June 2015 Rhia  284.50 06/30/2015 110-000-200004

 9,264.13Check Total:

Vendor: POR013 PORTLAND GENERAL ELECTRIC Check Sequence: 13 ACH Enabled: True

06182015 Abt ES NW Main 297576-8488869 04/03/2015-05/31/2015  16.33 06/30/2015 111-433-640000

06182015 JMCH 2 97576-3626588 04/03/2015-05/31/2015  61.66 06/30/2015 110-452-310000

06182015 Chamber2 551334-762100 0 04/03/2015-05/31/2015  16.22 06/30/2015 110-452-310000

AP-Computer Check Proof List by Vendor (07/02/2015 - 10:14 AM) Page 2

___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 197 of 219

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=CIT007
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=CIT007
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=19887dfa-3111-40ff-91ac-3fb68d914035
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-000-200003
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=8d426f13-b454-4236-9d52-1cc69187bea8
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-000-200003
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=6839f84f-5673-4815-a922-ad66ca3716fc
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-000-200003
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=MCB001
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=MCB001
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=605d0976-df77-4732-881b-0dccb49969c3
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-419-610000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=NAB100
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=NAB100
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=26b8d8d4-9467-4208-85e5-46ff670f50e7
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-455-330000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=NOR014
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=NOR014
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=399ad835-c14c-4989-be93-39c5e2801bde
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-419-310000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=c1968188-f517-49cc-9ad3-8577adc8ae9b
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-455-310000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=26840f3f-8457-4df3-966e-1e0eb803945d
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-419-310000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=0afd59c8-6c01-475d-8e39-6b5377073fcd
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:210-433-310000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=ee1388d5-ec59-4d0e-8efc-6da1aea79981
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-452-310000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=POA100
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=POA100
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=a7670466-8232-4e8d-831b-82694d5827c7
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-419-340100
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=02192
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=02192
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=bc021246-0020-42af-a7a1-2f96d847fb3e
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-000-200004
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=b35fb776-55ae-414a-bbdb-b770240ce948
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-000-200004
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=1bbc1fb9-a09b-43e1-9895-22f7a57f41b0
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-000-200004
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=POR013
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=POR013
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=266e702a-af0d-4dc4-a7aa-d5025d7c2ab7
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:111-433-640000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=f42f9874-e2d7-40ec-bfb4-e171a5005490
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-452-310000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=59459a10-c3f4-4070-b61e-dea285c1fa87
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-452-310000


Invoice No Description Amount Payment Date Acct Number Reference

06182015 Glencoe/Highland 297576-90046 04/30-06/01/2015  21.89 06/30/2015 111-433-640000

06182015 Water 297576-8196009 04/03/2015-05/31/2015  15.78 06/30/2015 210-433-310000

06182015 Library 137997-8213477 04/03/2015-05/31/2015  421.30 06/30/2015 110-455-310000

06182015 Yellow House 2975765121653 04/03/2015-05/31/2015  32.61 06/30/2015 110-419-310000

06182015 Chamber 10 20234-3332 8 04/03/2015-05/31/2015  17.98 06/30/2015 110-452-310000

06182015 Pump House 297576-2624915 04/03/2015-05/31/2015  608.19 06/30/2015 210-433-310000

06182015 City Hall 29756-2234087 04/03/2015-05/31/2015  370.57 06/30/2015 110-419-310000

06182015 PW 297576-3336402 04/03/2015-05/31/2015  54.45 06/30/2015 110-433-310000

06182015 Main & Wascoe 297576-8502552 04/03/2015-05/31/2015  16.33 06/30/2015 111-433-640000

06252015 Street Lights 297576-1251090 05/08/2015-06/09/2015  1,973.23 06/30/2015 111-433-640000

 3,626.54Check Total:

Vendor: TMO100 T-MOBILE Check Sequence: 14 ACH Enabled: True

06132015  95.27 06/30/2015 110-421-330108

 95.27Check Total:

Total for Check Run:

Total of Number of Checks:

 36,967.18

 14

AP-Computer Check Proof List by Vendor (07/02/2015 - 10:14 AM) Page 3

___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 198 of 219

http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=a2aba90e-b0b5-4bc9-9f0d-dc0fb48ad084
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:111-433-640000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=4c014112-ae5e-471d-aede-72931f600fd8
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:210-433-310000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=af8ab8cc-8dd4-43ab-bfcc-4536b530d158
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-455-310000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=307a6d5b-a6b3-4c89-beec-f1b18f04f5ab
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-419-310000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=5f1ea47d-c068-4686-a42e-907bbe5c31d3
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-452-310000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=e5061a60-fb9b-4d31-a08d-9adb96478034
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:210-433-310000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=5070b39d-ca38-4426-bbda-f5f1ee45b5ec
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-419-310000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=d3a175c6-93bb-4f9f-b16b-bf8d6a9f3712
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-433-310000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=a9e639d8-8a6b-479c-8e15-72dc65b4608e
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:111-433-640000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=6f9d759f-035b-4ec9-a425-a95877f8f1ec
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:111-433-640000
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=TMO100
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APVendor&id=TMO100
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=APInvoice&id=df8f66a3-a99e-4449-9c1f-9b8dcf4c5615
http://ssi.NET?action=object&object=GLAccount&id=2015:110-421-330108


 

Agenda Item No: 11A     

 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS 

31360 NW Commercial Street, North Plains, Oregon 97133 

 

Date:  July 20, 2015 

To:  Mayor and City Council 

From:  Public Works Director and Interim City Manager Blake Boyles 

Subject: Introduction, first reading and possible adoption of Ordinance No. 425 

Request: Council to introduce Ordinance No. 425— An Ordinance of the City Council of 
the City of North Plains, Oregon, Amending Municipal Code Section 15.02.190 
(Comprehensive Plan Land Use Map) and 16.10.006 (Zoning Districts-Boundaries)--
Eggiman Property, read by title for the first time and adopt this Ordinance. 
 
The Charter typically requires two readings to approve an ordinance, but it can be 
approved with one reading if none of the Council members who are present object and 
the ordinance is available to the Council and the public at least seven days in advance. 
 
A copy of Ordinance No. 425 was distributed to the Council via e-mail on 7/13/2015 
along with being posted on the city website and available at City Hall. 
 
It was suggested to introduce, read and adopt this ordinance in one meeting due to the 
120 day deadline for the land use issue. 
 
Background: An application was submitted by Mike Eggiman, North Plains Center, LLC 
(22865 NW Yungen Road, Hillsboro, OR  97124), to amend the comprehensive plan 
map and zoning map from commercial to high density residential. The Planning 
Commission conducted a public hearing on the application on May 13, 2015 and the 
City Council conducted a public hearing on the application July 6, 2015. After having 
considered the application, the testimony and evidence in the record and the applicable 
criteria, the City Council approved the comprehensive plan map amendment and zoning 
map amendment with a minimum lot size of 5,000 square feet. The final findings report 
was signed by the Mayor and distributed to interested parties. 
 
Fiscal Impact:   There is no fiscal impact with this item. 
 
Environmental Issues:  None 
 

___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 199 of 219



Recommendation:  Council read Ordinance No. 425— An Ordinance of the City 
Council of the City of North Plains, Oregon, Amending Municipal Code Section 
15.02.190 (Comprehensive Plan Land Use Map) and 16.10.006 (Zoning Districts-
Boundaries) by title only and adopt the Ordinance. 
 
Sample Motions:  
1.)  I move to read Ordinance No. 425 into record by title only.  
2.)  I Move to adopt Ordinance No. 425 
 
Ordinance No. 425 title: An Ordinance of the City Council of the City of North Plains, 
Oregon, Amending Municipal Code Section 15.02.190 (Comprehensive Plan Land Use 
Map) and 16.10.006 (Zoning Districts-Boundaries) 
 
 
 

___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 200 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 201 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 202 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 203 of 219



___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 204 of 219



Eggiman Zone Change Staff Report to Planning Commission- May 6, 2015   1 
 

 
 

CITY OF NORTH PLAINS PLANNING COMMISSION 

 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 6B  

 
Subject: Eggiman Zone Change 
From: Heather Austin, AICP, Consulting Land Use Planner 

 

 
 

City Staff Report 
May 6, 2015 

 
City File: #15-002 

 
Application Purpose:                   An application for approval of a comprehensive plan 

map and zone change 
 
Public Hearing Date: May 13, 2015 

 
Applicant: Mike Eggiman 
 North Plains Center, LLC 

22865 NW Yungen Road 
Hillsboro, OR  97124 

 
Applicant’s Representative: Westlake Consultants, Inc. 

15115 SW Sequoia Parkway, Suite 150 

Tigard, OR  97224 
Contact: Ken Sandblast, AICP

___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 205 of 219



Eggiman Zone Change Staff Report to Planning Commission- May 6, 2015   2 
 

Site Location: Eastside of Glencoe Road between NW Kaybern St. and 
NW Pacific St. 

 
TaxLot:                                       1N31DD002300 

 
Size: 4.67 acres  

City Land Use Classification:   COMM (Commercial) 
 
Application Deemed Complete: April 9, 2015 
120-Day Deadline:               August 7, 2015 

 
 
EXHIBITS 

1.  Applicant’s application packet, dated March 11, 2015 and April 8, 2015 
 
REQUEST 

The applicant requests approval of the following: 
 

 Comprehensive Plan Map Amendment 

 Zoning Code Map Amendment 

 
This request is subject to a Type IV process for quasi-judicial review by the Planning 
Commission. The proposal includes a comprehensive plan map amendment from 
Commercial to High-Density Residential and a zoning code map amendment from COMM 
to R-2.5.   
 

SUMMARY CONCLUSIONS 

 
This report includes findings regarding each applicable Comprehensive Plan and Zoning 
Code criterion. The proposal is generally consistent with the Comprehensive Plan 
and Zoning Code criteria for a Comprehensive Plan Map Amendment and a Zoning 
Code Map Amendment.   

 
SITE DESCRIPTION  

The property is located on the eastside of Glencoe Road between NW Kaybern Street and 
NW Pacific Street. The project site is 4.67 acres and is identified as Tax Lot 2300 on 
Map 1N31DD. The site is located within the City of North Plains and is zoned COMM for 
commercial development. A lot line adjustment was approved in July 2014 reconfiguring 
the lot lines of all properties owned by Mike Eggiman, the applicant for this zone change, 
and creating a single parcel that is the subject of this application. 
  
The site is currently vacant of buildings but contains a stormwater pond treatment and 
detention facility located in the southeast corner of the site adjacent to the NW Pacific 
Street right-of-way.  The stormwater facility was constructed as part of the Glencoe Road 
interchange improvements and is sized as a regional facility to include all runoff from 
future development of the subject site. 

 

Compliance with City of North Plains Municipal Code 

 
16.200 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN & ZONING AMENDMENTS 

___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 206 of 219



Eggiman Zone Change Staff Report to Planning Commission- May 6, 2015   3 
 

16.200.015 Review Criteria 

B. Map Amendment 

An amendment to the Comprehensive Plan Map or Official Zoning Map may be 
authorized, provided that the proposal satisfies all applicable requirements of this 
Ordinance, and provided that the applicant demonstrates the following: 
  
 1.  That the proposed amendment is consistent with the goals and policies of 
 the Comprehensive Plan; 

 
Finding: The applicable goals and policies of the comprehensive plan are found in 
the following sections: 
 
15.02.010- Citizen Involvement 
15.02.020- Land Use Planning 
15.02.070- Economics  
15.02.080- Housing 
15.02.050- Areas Subject to Natural Disasters and Hazards 
15.02.090- Public Facilities and Services 
15.02.100- Schools Policy 
 
Each of the applicable comprehensive plan sections are addressed below. 

 
15.02.010 Citizen Involvement 
15.02.014 Statewide Planning Goal 1 
To develop a Citizen Involvement Program that insures the opportunity for citizens 
to be involved in all phases of the planning process. 

 

Finding: The City of North Plains has designated the Planning Commission as the  
Committee for Citizen Involvement.  The City will conduct two public hearings for 
this amendment application; the first before the Planning Commission, who will 
then make a recommendation to the City Council for the second hearing before 
the City Council.  The proposed application does not impact the City’s compliance 
with Goal 1. 

 

15.02.020 Land Use Planning 

To insure an adequate supply of land for residential, commercial and industrial 
development purposes as well as land for uses related that provide for a complete 
community such as open space, institutional, public/private facility, community 
service, historic uses, the following categories have been developed for use in the 
comprehensive plan map, which will provide the basis for the City's zoning map.  
These categories are defined as follows:*** 

Residential:  The City’s goal is to achieve a mix of low density (40%), medium 
density (40%), and high density (20%) residential use providing an average density of 
8.4 units per acre.*** 

Commercial:  Encourages development of commercial uses supportive of the 
surrounding community.  Placement of the commercial uses should encourage 
pedestrian and bicycle access to these areas. 

 

Finding: On the subject site, the adopted Comprehensive Plan currently designates 1.75 
acres of the 4.67 acres as High Density Residential (HDR) and the remaining 2.92 acres as 

___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 207 of 219



Eggiman Zone Change Staff Report to Planning Commission- May 6, 2015   4 
 

Commercial.  The proposal requests a map amendment to designate the 2.92 
Commercial acres as High Density Residential, allowing the entire parcel to be 
designated as one land use designation. 
 
The current North Plains Zoning Map has the entire subject site zoned Commercial 
(“COMM”), which for the 1.75 acres designated HDR in the Comprehensive Plan 
Map is an inconsistent zoning district.  Thus, concurrent with the proposed 
comprehensive plan map amendment, this application requests a zoning code map 
amendment for the entire subject site to R-2.5 for consistency with existing and 
proposed HDR Comprehensive Plan designation. 
 
The North Plains buildable land inventory has been reviewed and compiled into 
draft form through the City’s ongoing Comprehensive Plan update effort. Based 
upon a review of this information, the proposed Comprehensive Plan change of 
2.92 acres from commercial to high density residential will not have a significant 
impact on the overall supply of either commercial or high-density residential land 
within the City. 
 
At the policy level, the Plan update effort is indicating a desire by the North 
Plains community to have larger residential lot sizes in the R-2.5 zone. Exhibit H 
included with the application is a conceptual future development plan for the 
subject site demonstrating how this property can be divided into lot sizes 
averaging 4,000+ square feet with approval of this application, consistent with 
the Community’s vision for the R-2.5 zone.  
 
The proposal has demonstrated compliance with this section. 

 

15.02.070 Economics 
15.02.074 Statewide Planning Goal 9 
To diversify and improve the economy of the state. 
15.02.075 City Objectives and policies 
1. Objective: To increase local job opportunities. 
2. Objective: Diverse businesses and industries should be encouraged to locate in 
North Plains. 
 

Finding: The applicant’s submitted narrative states,  
 

After a thorough review of the North Plains Economic Opportunities 
Analysis and Long Term Urban Land Needs Assessment July 2009 (“EOAA”), 
as well as a review of pending policies in Section 15.02.070 through the 
ongoing Envision North Plains Future citywide planning effort, the 
applicant notes the following qualitative site requirements from the EOAA 
for commercial retail development pattern types that are applicable to 
this proposed Comprehensive Plan Map Amendment and Zone Change from 
Commercial to R-2.5: 

Commercial lands are free from environmental constraints such as slopes, 
floodplains 
The subject site has areas of slopes in excess of 15% slope and an overall 
average of close to 10%. There is also an area of the site lying within the 
floodplain in the southeast corner. Both of these are environmental 
constraints for commercial lands. 

High visibility from major arterials 

___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 208 of 219



Eggiman Zone Change Staff Report to Planning Commission- May 6, 2015   5 
 

The subject site is area that is topographically separated from Glencoe 
Road, a major arterial. There is not high visibility of the subject site from 
a major arterial. 

Site size for Retail Trade Type of Commercial Retail “Neighborhood 
Shopping Centers” is 3-10 acre 
The subject site is owned by the applicant Mike Eggiman as is the 4.5 acres 
of land adjacent to the west and fronting on Glencoe Road and this will 
remain designated and zoned Commercial. In satisfaction of this factor, 
approval of this application retains total acreage of between 3-10 acres 
available for neighborhood shopping center commercial retail. 
Thus, approval of this application satisfies all three of the above site 
requirements by removing commercially designated land that has poor 
visibility from a major arterial and is environmentally constraint while at 
the same time retaining 4.7 acres of the applicant’s property for a future 
neighborhood shopping center type commercial development. 

 
The applicant has demonstrated that the subject site is not an ideal commercial 
property due to slope, floodplain and visibility, all factors identified in the City’s 
Economic Opportunities Analysis (EOA).  In addition, the applicant has identified 
that the pieces of property under the same ownership that do meet the EOA criteria 
for a commercial site will be retained in commercial zoning.  The portion of the 
property along Glencoe Road and less steeply sloped with no floodplain and greater 
than 3 acres in size will remain in commercial zoning.  Any development on the 
remaining commercial portion of this site will retain the potential to serve existing 
residents of North Plains, as well as the future residents of the area proposed for 
the zone change to R-2.5 zoning. The proposed amendment is consistent with this 
section. 

 
15.02.080 Housing 
15.02.084 Statewide Planning Goal 10 
To provide for the housing needs of citizens of the state. 
15.02.085 City Objectives and Policies 
1. Objective: Future residential development should provide a variety of housing 
choices for North Plains’ citizens in a manner that is consistent with the City’s 
livability objectives. 
2. OBJECTIVE: To cooperate with the Federal, State and regional agencies to help 
provide for housing rehabilitation assistance to residents. 
3. OBJECTIVE: To evaluate proposals for new housing in terms of the impact of 
additional numbers of people on the natural environment, community services, utility 
support systems, and projected housing space needs. 

 
Finding: The proposal is to amend the Comprehensive Plan Map and Zoning Code 
Map from commercial to high density residential (R-2.5 for zoning).  The applicant 
has been notified of the City’s current zoning code amendment changing the 
minimum lot size in the R-2.5 zone from 2,500 square feet to 4,000 square feet and 
has submitted a conceptual subdivision layout reflecting this lot size.  The increase 
in R-2.5 zoning proposed by this amendment is consistent with the Housing standard 
of the Comprehensive Plan. 

 
15.02.050 Areas Subject to Natural Disasters and Hazards 
Steep slopes pose no significant hazard to development within the City of North Plains.  
However, there is a potential threat to life and property due to the following: 

___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 209 of 219



Eggiman Zone Change Staff Report to Planning Commission- May 6, 2015   6 
 

15.02.051 Flooding 
15.02.042 Soil Limitations 

 
Finding: The area of the property developed with the surface stormwater 
treatment and detention facility is located below the FEMA floodplain elevation of 
168 ft. and, therefore, is within the designated floodplain.  However, because this 
area is already a stormwater facility, future development within the floodplain will 
not be possible.  No soil limitations have been identified on this site.  The proposal 
is in compliance with this section.   

 
15.02.090 Public Facilities and Services 
The City of North Plains adopted the “Water System Master Plan”, April 1980, and the 
“Sanitary Sewer Collection System”, January, 1978.  More recently, the City adopted 
an updated Water Master Plan on September 23, 1999.  The two documents are the 
specific development and policy documents for the provision of water and sanitary 
sewer. 
15.02.094 Statewide Planning Goal 11 
To plan and develop a timely, orderly and efficient arrangement of public facilities and 
services to serve as a framework for urban development consistent with the City’s 
livability objectives. 
 

Finding: There are existing sanitary and water lines in the public right-of-way and 
public utility easements adjacent to the subject site.  There is an existing surface 
stormwater treatment and detention facility located in the southeast corner of the 
subject site that is sized to include all development on this property.  Services exist 
or can be constructed to support development of this site in a timely, orderly and 
efficient manner.  The proposal meets the requirements of this section. 

 
15.02.100 Schools Policy 
(1)  The City shall coordinate with the Hillsboro School District to project all school 
 land needs and to determine the location of future school sites. 
(2)    The City will determine if park lands shall adjoin school lands. 
(3)   The City will assure that school lands are accessible to all neighborhoods via  
 efficient and safe linkages.  The City defines efficient and safe linkages for 
 school children as those linkages, such as pathways and sidewalks, which are 
 designed for pedestrian and bicycle riding  opportunities  for  school children, to 
 enable them to make their way to and from school in a safe manner with a 
 minimal amount of traffic conflicts. 
(4)  The  City shall encourage  the  Hillsboro  School  District  to establish and 
 maintain all school facilities within the City and UGB  and  to  site  new  schools  
 only  in  a  manner  that  is consistent with the City’s livability objectives. 
 

Finding: The City notifies the Hillsboro School District of all land use 
applications.  The Hillsboro School District has not identified this site as a 
potential school site.  Adequate pedestrian and bicycle connections to this 
residential development will be conditioned at time of land use review for the 
subdivision.  The proposed map amendment is consistent with the Schools Policy 
of the Comprehensive Plan.   

 
 2.  The purpose statement of the proposed zone can be met and the uses 

 permitted in the proposed zone can be accommodated on the proposed site 

 without exceeding its physical capacity. Allowed uses in the proposed zone can 

___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 210 of 219



Eggiman Zone Change Staff Report to Planning Commission- May 6, 2015   7 
 

 be established in compliance with the development requirements of the Code;  

Finding: Permitted uses in the R-2.5 zone include single-family detached, single-
family attached, duplexes, triplexes, townhomes and multi-family dwellings. 
Exhibit H is a conceptual future subdivision plan for the subject site.  The submitted 
concept plan demonstrates that single-family dwellings, a permitted use in the 
proposed zone, can be established in compliance with applicable development 
requirements for subdividing land in the R-2.5 zone. 

 
 3. That the proposed amendment is timely, considering the pattern of 

 development in the  area, surrounding land uses, any changes which may have 

 occurred in the neighborhood or  community to warrant the proposed 

 amendment, and the availability of utilities and services to serve the proposed 

 uses or other potential uses in the proposed zoning district; and  

Finding: The subject site is adjacent to High Density Residential zoning to the 
north, south and west and to Commercial zoning to the east (along Glencoe Road).  
The proposed pattern of development with commercial along Glencoe Road and 
residential set behind the commercial development is consistent with development 
in the area, surrounding land uses, changes (R-2.5 development) that have recently 
occurred in the neighborhood and community and available utilities and services.   
This proposal is timely and appropriate for this site.   

 
 4. That the amendment conforms to the Transportation Planning Rule 

 provisions under this Chapter 16.200.015 subsection 5.  

16.200.015.A Subsection 5 
5. Amendments that affect Transportation Plans. Except as provided in 
subsection 6 Exceptions, amendments to the Comprehensive Plan or land use 
regulations which significantly affect a transportation facility shall assure 
that allowed land uses are consistent with the function, capacity and level 
or service of the facility identified in the North Plains TSP. This shall be 
accomplished by one of the following: 
A. Adopting measures that demonstrate that allowed land uses are consistent 
with the planned function of the transportation facility; or 
B. Amending the North Plains TSP or Comprehensive Plan to provide 
transportation facilities, improvements, or services adequate to support the 
proposed land uses; such amendments shall include a funding plan to ensure 
the facility, improvement , or service will be provided by the end of the 
planning period; or 
C. Altering land use designations, densities, or design requirements to reduce 
demand for automobile travel and meet travel needs through other modes of 
transportation; or 
D. Amending the planned function, capacity or performance standards of the 
transportation facility; or 
E. Providing other measures as a condition of development or through a 
development agreement or similar funding method, specifying when such 
measures will be provided. 

 
Finding: The proposed comprehensive plan map amendment is from a commercial 
designation to a residential designation and, as such, a reduction in the number of 
vehicle trips to the site is anticipated.  This proposed map amendment will not 

___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 211 of 219



Eggiman Zone Change Staff Report to Planning Commission- May 6, 2015   8 
 

significantly affect a transportation facility and, therefore, consistency with the 
adopted TSP will be maintained throughout future development of the site. At the 
time the applicant submits a subdivision application for the property, a traffic 
impact assessment will be required demonstrating further compliance with the 
City’s TSP.  The proposal complies with the Transportation Planning Rule provisions.  

 

16.200.020 Findings  

Findings justifying a decision on an application shall be made in writing, and shall 

be provided to the applicant.  

Finding: Written findings have been provided for each of the applicable 
Comprehensive Plan and Zoning Code section in this staff report. 

 

16.200.025 Conditions  

The granting of an approval of any land use action under Chapter 16.200 may be 

subject to such conditions as are reasonably necessary to protect the public 

health, safety or general welfare from potentially damaging effects resulting from 

approval of the permit, or to fulfill the public need for service demands created 

by approval of the request. 

Finding: Conditions are included at the end of this report, as necessary. 
 

 
16.170 APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS AND REVIEW PROCEDURES 

Administrative, Limited Land Use, Quasi-Judicial & Legislative Decisions 

16.170.000 General Provisions 
D.  Type IV Legislative and Other Decisions made by both the Planning 
Commission and City Council 
  
 1.  Appeal from Planning Commission 
 2.  Annexation 
 3. Comprehensive Plan Map or Text Amendment 
 4.  Zoning Code Map or Text Amendment 

 
Finding: This application is classified as Type IV because it includes a 
comprehensive plan map amendment and a zoning code map amendment. 

 
16.170.001 Pre-application Conference 
A pre-application conference is recommended for a Type II, III and IV permit. The 
applicant shall file the appropriate application, pay the review fee and meet with the 
City Planner, other city staff and affected agencies. At the conference the City Planner 
shall identify the relevant comprehensive plan policies, map designations, zone and 
development standards and procedural requirements applicable to the application. The 
planner and affected agencies shall provide technical data and identify opportunities or 
constraints concerning the application. 

 
Failure of the City to provide any information required by this section does not 
constitute a waiver of any of the standards, criteria or requirements for the application. 
Due to possible changes in federal, state, regional and local law, the applicant is 

___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 212 of 219



Eggiman Zone Change Staff Report to Planning Commission- May 6, 2015   9 
 

responsible for assuring the application complies with all applicable laws on the day the 
application is deemed complete. 

 
Finding: A pre-application conference was held with the City prior to submittal 
of this land use application. 

 
16.170.002 Neighborhood Meeting 
Applicants or their representatives are encouraged to meet with adjacent property 
owners and neighborhood representatives prior to submitting an application to the City 
in order to solicit input and exchange information about the proposed development. The 
applicant for a Type III application is encouraged to hold a neighborhood meeting with a 
recognized neighborhood or community organization. If no organization exists, then the 
applicant is encouraged to hold a meeting with adjacent property owners within a radius 
of 250 feet who will receive public notice. 

 
Finding: The applicant held a neighborhood meeting regarding this proposal on 
February 18, 2015 and, as such, this standard is met.   

 
16.170.003 Traffic Impact Study 

The purpose of this section of the code is to assist in determining which road authorities 
participate in a land use decision, and to implement Section 660-012-0045 (2) of the 
State Transportation Planning Rule that requires the City to apply conditions to 
development proposals in order to minimize impacts and protect transportation 
facilities. This Chapter establishes the standards for when a proposal must be reviewed 
for potential traffic impacts; when a Traffic Impact Study must be submitted with a 
development application in order to determine whether conditions are needed to 
minimize impacts to and protect transportation facilities; what must be in a Traffic 
Impact Study; and who is qualified to prepare the Study. 

 
A.  When a Traffic Impact Study is required. The City or other road authority with 

jurisdiction may require a Traffic Impact Study (TIS) as part of an application for 
development, a change in use, or a change in access. A TIS shall be required 
when a land use application involves one or more of the following actions: 

 
1.  A change in zoning or a plan amendment designation; 
2.  Any proposed development of land use action that a road authority states 

may have operational or safety concerns along its facility; 
3.  An increase in site traffic volume generation by 300 Average Daily Trips 

(ADT) or more; or 

4.  An increase in site traffic volume of a particular movement to and from 
the State Highway by 20 percent or more; or\ 

5.  An increase in use of adjacent streets by vehicles exceeding the 20,000 
pound gross vehicle weights by 10 vehicles or more per day; or 

6. The location of the access driveway does not meet minimum sight distance 
requirements, or is located where vehicles entering or leaving the 
property are restricted, or such vehicles queue or hesitate on the State 
Highway, creating a safety hazard; or 

7.  A change in internal traffic patterns that may cause safety problems, such 
as back up onto a street or greater potential for traffic accidents. 

 
B.  Traffic Impact Study Preparation. A Traffic Impact Study shall be prepared by a 

professional engineer in accordance with the requirements of the road 

___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 213 of 219



Eggiman Zone Change Staff Report to Planning Commission- May 6, 2015   10 
 

authority. If the road authority is the Oregon Department of Transportation 
(ODOT), consult ODOT’s regional development review planner and OAR 734- 
051-180. 

 
Finding: This submittal does not include a traffic impact study as there is no 
proposed development at this time.  At the time that the applicant submits a 
development application for a subdivision of the residentially zoned property, a 
traffic impact study will be required as applicable.   

 
C. City Street Improvement Requirements. In addition to street improvement 

requirements in this code for new development, see Chapters 16.145 and 16.150 
for street improvement requirements related to single family homes and 
commercial and industrial expansions. 

 
Finding: The applicant will be required to meet all City and County street standards 
for construction and dedication at time of land use application for a development 
on the subject site. 

 
16.170.013 Type IV Legislative Decisions 

 

A. Pre-application Conference. A pre-application conference is required for all 
Type IV legislative applications initiated by a party other than the City of 
North Plains. The City Manager may waive this requirement.   

 
Finding: As previously described, a pre-application conference was held with the 
City of North Plains in compliance with Section 16.170.001. 

 
B.  Timing of Requests.  The City accepts legislative requests at any time.  The City 
Council may initiate its own legislative proposals at any time. 
 

Finding: The timing of submittal of the legislative request is appropriate. 
 
C.  Application Requirements. 

1. Application forms. A legislative application shall be made on forms provided 
by the City. 

2.  Submittal Information. The application shall contain: 
a. The information requested on the application form; 

b. A map and/or plan addressing the appropriate criteria and standards in 
sufficient detail for review and decision (as applicable); 

c.  The required fee pursuant to Chapter 16.00.070; and 
d. One copy of a letter or narrative statement that explains how the 

application satisfies all of the relevant approval criteria and standards. 

 
Finding: The applicant has met the requirements of 16.170.020 and was deemed to 
have submitted a complete application on April 9, 2015. 

 
CONCLUSION 

 
The Planning Commission is considering a recommendation to the City Council of the 
proposed comprehensive plan map amendment and zoning code map amendment.  The 
Planning Commission may recommend that the City Council approve, approve with 
Conditions or Deny the requested amendments.  

___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 214 of 219



Eggiman Zone Change Staff Report to Planning Commission- May 6, 2015   11 
 

 
 

___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 215 of 219



Ordinance No. 425 

Comp Plan Amendment: Eggiman Property 

July 20, 2015 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 425  
 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON, 
AMENDING MUNICIPAL CODE SECTION 15.02.190 (COMPREHENSIVE PLAN LAND USE 

MAP) and 16.10.006 (ZONING DISTRICTS-BOUNDARIES)  
 

WHEREAS, Mike Eggiman, North Plains Center, LLC (22865 NW Yungen Road, Hillsboro, 
OR  97124), submitted a land use application to amend the City of North Plains 
comprehensive plan map and zoning map from commercial to high density residential; and 

 
WHEREAS, having considered the application, the evidence in the record and the 

applicable criteria, the City of North Plains City Council approved File No. 15-002 PA 
(Eggiman Zone Change), amending the comprehensive plan map designation of 2.92 acres 
from COMM to HDR and amending the zoning map designation of 4.72 acres from C-2 to R-
2.5 with a 5,000 square foot minimum lot size; and 

 
WHEREAS, the subject property is identified as Tax Lot 2300 Map No. 1N31DD and is 

located on the east side of NW Glencoe Road between NW Kaybern Street and NW Pacific 
Street, as shown on the attached map; and 

 
WHEREAS, the approved comprehensive plan map amendment and zoning map 

amendment are shown in Exhibits A and B, attached hereto. 
 

THE CITY OF NORTH PLAINS ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. The Municipal Code Section 15.02.190 shall be amended to 
change 2.92 acres of land designated as COMM to HDR, as shown 
in “Exhibit A”, attached hereto. 

 
Section 2. The Municipal Code Section 16.10.006 shall be amended to 

change 4.72 acres of land from C-2 to R-2.5 with a 5,000 square 
foot minimum, as shown in “Exhibit B”, attached hereto.  
 

 
INTRODUCED and ADOPTED on the 20th day of July, 2015. 

 
CITY OF NORTH PLAINS, OREGON 
 
 
By:  _______________________________________ 

David Hatcher, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
By:  _______________________________________ 

Margaret L. Reh, City Recorder 

___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 216 of 219



  

 

Ordinance No. 425 Exhibit A 

 

 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN MAP AMENDMENT FROM COMM TO HDR 

 

Exhibit A- Orange portion of “Site” Changes from COMM to HDR 

 

___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 217 of 219



  

 

Ordinance No. 425 Exhibit B 

 

ZONING MAP AMENDMENT FROM C-2 TO R-2.5 

 

Exhibit B- “Site” Changes from C-2 to R-2.5 Zoning, As Shown 

* Denotes R-2.5 Zoning with 5,000 SF minimum lot size 

* 

___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 218 of 219



August 2015 Council Calendar 
 

Meeting Primary 
Altern
ate 

Note Date 

City Council  
7:00 p.m. at North Plains 
Senior Center 

08/03 

National Night Out  
Tuesday @ 6:30 at Jessie Mays 
Community Park 08/04 

North Plains Thursday Marketplace 5:00-8:00 on Commercial Street 08/06 

North Plains Elephant Garlic Festival-All weekend! Jessie Mays Community Park 08/7-8-9 

Washington County 
Coordinating Committee 
(WCCC) 

Hatcher Boyles 2nd Monday @  12 noon 08/10 

Planning Commission  Simmons  2nd Wednesday @ 7 p.m. 08/12 

North Plains Thursday Marketplace 5:00-8:00 on Commercial Street 08/13 

Washington County Office of 
Community Development 
Policy Advisory Board 

Kindel Lenahan 2nd Thursday @ 7 p.m. 08/13 

Friday Night Concert in the Park-Strawberry Roan Jessie Mays Grassy Field 08/14 

City Council (Cancelled) 
7:00 p.m. at North Plains 
Senior Center 

08/17 

Library Board  King  3rd Wednesday @ 7:00 08/19 

North Plains Thursday Marketplace   08/20 

Friday Night Concert in the Park-After the Rain 
(Mitch & Sunny) Jessie Mays Grassy Field 08/21 

Parks Board  4th Wednesday @ 6 p.m. 08/26 

Metro Policy Advisory 
Committee (MPAC) Hatcher Lenahan 4th Wednesday @ 5 p.m. 08/26 

North Plains Thursday Marketplace   08/27 

Friday Night Concert in the Park  Jessie Mays Grassy Field 08/28 

Metropolitan Area 
Communications Commission 
(MACC) 

Whitehead Newton  
 
 
 

 
___________________________________________ 
NORTH PLAINS CITY COUNCIL AGENDA PACKET 

Monday, July 20, 2015 
Packet Pagination: Page 219 of 219


	4A 072015 Preliminary Agenda
	4B 070615 City Council Minutes
	6A Police Officer Oath of Office Eric Shafer Signed
	6A Police Officer Oath of Office Jesse Baker Signed
	9A MACC Staff Report - Comcast Franchise (NorthPlains)
	9A Resolution No. 1900 NorthPlains MACC Model Resolution (00469639xB8084)
	9A1Comcast-MACC Franchise and Exhibits
	9B MACC Staff Report CenturyLink - Jurisdiction Staff Report (North Plains)
	9B Resolution No. 1901 NorthPlains CENTURYLINK MACC Model Resolution
	9B1 2015-07 Granting Cable Franchise to CenturyLink
	9B2 CenturyLink Franchise - complete  final
	9B3 All Franchises side by side North Plains - July 2015
	9B4 QA to North Plains
	9C Memo June 2015 Check Register Explanation
	9C1 Computer Check Proof List by Vendor 06-11-15
	9C2 Computer Check Proof List by Vendor 06-17-15
	9C3 Computer Check Proof List by Vendor 06-30-15
	9C4 Computer Check Proof List by Vendor 07-02-15
	11A Memo Ordinance Number 425 Reading and Adoption
	11A1 15-032 Eggiman Glencoe Final Order and Notice of Decision Comp Plan and Map Amend Signed
	11A2 15-032 Eggiman Zone Change Staff Report to PC 05 06 15 (2)
	11A3 15-032 Ordinance Number 425 Eggiman Glencoe Zone Change Ordinance
	11A4 15-032 Eggiman Glencoe Zone Change Ordinance - Exhibits
	13B Calendar August 2015



